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MR . CHAIRMAN : OrdC)r please. We will proceed with :he meeting to hear from the 

Chairman of the Manitoba Development Corporation, Mr. Parsons. Before we start with any 

questions ,  I believe he has a number of questions that he had taken as notice at the last meeting. 

I will call upon Mr. Parsons to give those answers .  Mr. McGill. 

MR . McGILL : Mr. Chairman, just hC)fore Mr. Parsons begins,  I wo'lder if he has any 

of the statements now that were not available at the last m eeting ? 

MR . PARSONS: No , I have no further statements. 

MR . McGILL : Does that mean that we . . .  

MR . CHAIRMAN : What s tatements were you referring to ? 

MR . McGILL : Well, one for Saunders Aircraft, another one for Misawa and Sheller ­

Globe, Venture Manitoba Tours. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : You have the financial statement, Mr. McGill, for Saur1d·�rs Aircraft 

Corporation Ltd . , Financial Statement September 30th, 1974 .  All d those statements have 

been ta�led . 

MR . McGILL: Yes , I'm sorry. Yes, it was Misawa that we were interested in particu­

larly. We do have SaundC)r s .  

MR . CHAIRMAN : Misawa i s  not r eady. It w a s  indicated Flyer Industries was not fin ­

ished at the time. Leaf Rapids Development Corporation , the chairman will appear before 

this committee. So we are now ready to proceed with the answer s to the questions that were 

asked at the last m e eting. Mr. Parsons. 

MR . PARSONS: Than1� you, Mr. Chairman .  Lad ies and Gentlemen : Mr. Spivak pre­

sented a question r e  Flyer Industries Ltd. His question was : "What date d'.d the Mercantile 

Bank call the loan and is there anything in writing that indicates that it was because of the 

strike that the loan was called ? "  My answer : The comp::my was ad'lised •Jn the 7th of November 

in 1974 ,  by the Mercantile Bank, that due to r eporting of operating losses and discontinuing 

operations due to the strike, the bank could no longer continue to providC) the operating line of 
credit that had ':Jeen agreed upon earlier in the year. The strike commenced ·Jn October 2nd. 

Another question from Mr. Spivak : "Was there a request or several requests by the bank 
prior to the strike for a guara.ntee of the government ?" The answer : A line of credit had 

been negotiated with the Mercantile Ban� earlier in 1974 without an MDC g•.1arantee being re­

quired. In the letter from the bank, dated November 22nd , 1974, the bank advised it was pre­

pared ·:o continue the operating line with an unlimited md uncond itional guarantee from MDC. 

This was the only formal indication from the ban'� whereby our guarantee would enable continu­

ation of the credit line. And that took place on November 22nd and the strike had started on 

October 2nd. In January of 1975, the MDC Board elected to pay off the existing bank loan in 

the amount of $ 2  millio'l instead of providing a guarantee. 

Mr. Minaker asked me when the Dayton , Ohio , order was received. Flyer Ind ustries 

was advised on the 27th of January, 1975, that it had been awarded the Dayton order. The 

formal execution of the dJcumentation too'< place on the 14th of May. 

Mr. Minaker again : "Whe!l was the te!lder received for the Dayton 0rdC)r ?" The comp.J.ny 

submitted its tender to Dayton on the 1st of November, 1974 .  

M r .  Spivak again asked me whe!l the cDn tract with A .  M. General terminates. The an ­

swer : The agreement is a ten-year term to expir e the 30th of September, 1931 ,  except that 

either party may terminate the agreeme!lt as of the 30th of Septemb·er, 1976 ,  upon p3.yment 

one to the other of $ 100. 000. I was in error. I stated Last time it was a five-year contract 

but it is actually a ten-year contract. 

Going on to the questions :Jn the next company, ther e ' s  Morden Fin e  Food s. Mr. McGill: 

"What was the amount of the audit fee for Mord·3n Fine Foods ? "  Answer : The audit fee for 

the fiscal year e!ld ed 3 1st o: March. 1974, including travellin5 expenses for the audit staff , 

was $ 4.600. The audit for the fiscal year e!lded 31st March, 1975 ,  is not yet completed. 

Mr. Sptvak on Morden Fine Foods :  "How m any n ew jobs will the anticipated expansion 

at Mord en Fine Foods create ?" The anticipated exp:1nsion at Morden is .expected to ,orovide 

·40 to 45 additional full time jobs. In add ition. there will be the usual seasonal part-time em­

ployment which should remain at the same level or slightly abe>ve. 
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(MR .  PARSONS cont'd) 

Those were all the questions that I took as notice at the last session of the committee. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : I know it' s  some time since we had the last m eeting of the committee 
dealing with the MDC Annual Report. However I did have a number of people who had intended 

to ask questions and if those member s would like to proceed. I have Mr. Johnston, then Mr. 
Mina.�er and Mr. Spivak. Mr. Johnston , do you wish to proceed in that order as we had here 
the last time? It was on the MDC, all of the corporations that have been listed on the sheet 

that you have been provided with. At that time we were dealing with -- (Interjection) -­

Pardon? 
MR. PARSONS: We were dealing with Morden. 
MR. CHAIRMAN : The last one was Morden Fine Foods Ltd. 
MR. GORDON JOHNSTON: Mr. Chairman, you must have me misplaced with someone 

else because I wasn't here for that d:iscussion. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : I have the same list that I used. 
MR . G. JOHNSTON : I have no questions on Morden Fine Foods. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minaker .  

M R .  MINAKER : May I ask. M r .  Chairman ,  are you sure i t  isn't  the list from the m eet­
ing before? 

MR . CHAIRMAN: No. I date these lists. Well, Mr. Spivak. 
MR. SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, my question isn't from before, my question is nvw and 

it ' s  only in relation to what Mr. Parsons has j ust given us. I just want to ask with r espect to 
Flyer, you have ind icated that there was a formal indication of the ban.k requesting a guarantee 
by the government. Can you not confirm now that there was in fact informal requests by the 
ban�< to Flyer for additional security by way of a guarantee from the government prior to the 
strike? 

MR. PARSONS: No , I had no indications that there was. 
MR . SPIVAK: Nor any of your officials. 
MR . PARSONS: No. We asked and the only letter we could find :m the file that ind'.cated 

MR . SPIVAK: But just again , you �mow, the confirmation by letter is one thing and I ac­
cept that that 's  a formal indication. But dealing with banks, and I think you're as familiar as 

the next person, much of what happens,  happens on an informal basis by way of discussions 
with the ban.'< who provide the line of credit and who have to deal with the daily problems with 
respect to financing. And, again, I put it to you: can you not confirm to this committee that 
prior to the strike, informally there had been req•1ests by the bank for a guarantee to be pr o­
vided by the government? 

MR . PARSONS: No , I can't  confirm that. The treasurer who was there previously , I 
haven't talked to him. He 's  no longer with the company. 

The next company that we have on our list is the Phoenix Data Ltd. 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Right. Mr. Minaker . 
MR. MINAKER : Mr. Chairman, are we leaving Morden Fine Food3? 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Well, if you have any questions on it, I had you on the list at that time. 

when we adjourned. 
MR . MINAKER :  Mr. Chairman, if I could, just to maybe review quickly our discussion 

in the prior meeting when we were dealing with MDC companies. There is ,  I believe,  a pro­
posal for an addition to Morden Fine Foods. 

MR . PARSONS: That is correct. 
MR. MINAKER : Is that in the coming year or the next year? 
MR . PARSONS: We have an applic ation in to DREE. It depends on when we get that ap­

plication through and we hope to continue if that is succes sful; and that we do receive a DR EE 
grant and if we can solve all our environmental problems, then we would proceed. 

MR . MINAKER :  Mr. Chairman, with regards to the environmental problems, it' s my 
understanding that there may be some capital commitments r equired for waste disposal and 
supply of water s ervices, etc. Would the Morden Fine Foods be paying for a portion of this 
capital expense that would probably be r equired for the townsite to pick up and look after this 
problem? 

MR . PARSONS: No. The townsite said that they would provide that. 
MR . MINAKER: That the additional burden that will be placed on the townsite will be 

carried by the town? 

I 
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MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. MINAKE R:  And will the compxny be charged a local improvement charge ? Morden 

Fine Food s ? 

MR . PARSONS: WelL at the time that we discus sed this with the town . they th:mght their 

lagoon system was sufficient. We don't  know whether it is or not. If they had to enlarge that. 

then maybe we'd have to negotiate but at the pres ent time we have no� g0t that in our costin;; 

figures. 
MR . MINAKER:  Thank you. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : That conclud es the Morde!'l Fine Foods Ltd. We ' ll pro�eed with 

Phoenix Data Ltd. Are there a!'ly q•.Iestions ? Mr . Ba!'lman. 

MR. BANMAN : Than.l< you, Mr. Chairman. I wonder if Mr. Paesons could ;:;ive us a 

brea\:down as to who was billed Eor the computer tim e  .'lnd the asso�iated charges to the 

Province of Manito"!:Ja and the Crown agencies this last fiscal year ? 

MR . PARSONS: I d:.m' t have that breakdown. I will provid e  it for yo·1. We have that 

breakd-Jwn , but I have'l 't it with me.  I will get it. 

MR . BANMAN : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker. 

MR. MINAKER:  Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Through you to Mr. Parsons. With 

regard s to Phoe'lix Data, will it be one of the companies that will be conse>lid'lted into the 

central computer facility that is presently being planned J.nd .�onsid ered ·Jy the Manitoba Tele­

phone System ? 

MR . PARSONS: No . 

MR . MINAKER : Mr. Chairman, through you. Will this particular company continue to 

operate on its own as a separate entity then ? 

MR . PARSONS : Yes. 

MR. MINAKER : There is no inte!'ltion ::>f closing d·Jwn this p:lrticular company at this 

time. 

MR . PARSONS: No, not at this tim e. 

MR . MINAKER:  The!1, if I und ers tand correctly. Phoenix Data Ltd. will be in compe ­

tition with the Manitoba Telephone System en:ity ? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR . MINAKER:  Has anybody from the Telepl10ne System communicated with you •Jr with 

Phoe'lix Data S:vstem with regards to the pr ese'lt plans they have for ce'ltral computer facili­

ties ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, yes. We have been with them . 

MR. MINAKE R :  They will be provid ing or Phnnix Data will be providing a differe!'lt 

type of system than what is proposed Ior the Telepl10ne System Comp•1ter Centr e ? 

MR. PARS0NS: Well, it ' s  a different type of computer . We will still carry on d-Jing 

the scientific work p::>s sibly for the Hydro. We are d·Jing some now that they c an't  dJ on their 

old computers .  We will still carry on doing that. We have the ed.Icational sys tem s et up in 

our computer s .  It would be quite costly to change that ove:-- so we are lFoposing to  continue 

that. We are also d·Jtng the Stude::1t Aid ProgTam which vvould s tay on plu 3 35 per cent of our 

revenue;> from outside of the g•wernment sector and :hat is increasing. 

MR. MINAKER:  Mr. Chairman , throu;;h you to Mr. Parsons . I 've been out of touch 

with the University Computer Centre in the past few years but does the University Comp•1ter 

C entre provide a similar service to Nhat you are presently providing from the sci e!'ltific e!'ld ? 

MR . PARSONS: I d·Jn 't  knovv. They could have if th2y have the programs set up. I 'm 

not familiar with their system either. We have not done any work for them D e  vic e versa 

have any of thes.g p3ople th�1t we are novv working for ,  had their work :l•Jn8 at the Univer s ity. 

MR. MINAKE R :  I wonde>r. would it create a pro�lem for Ph:>enix Data if yo·.1 were to 

d'sclose the type of custome:'s yo"l presently are provid ing services for ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes . I think that would :Je co'lfiden�ial info:--mation and I wouldn't  be 

prepared to d isclo s e  who we have on there. But I can tell you ':h.'lt 3::> percent of o·�r revenue 

is in the comm ercial seetor, o".Itside of government work. And that is increasing. 

MR . MINAKER:  Fine. Thanl< you. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Banm an. 

MR . BANMAN : Mr. Parsons, the 35 perce::1t, you just attained that mark this last year ? 

MR . PARSONS: Just last year, yes. 
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MR. BANMAN: Because I notice in the 1974 statement, you l\:now, it relates to about 
15 to 18 percent. 

MR. PARSONS: That ' s  right. We 're up to 35 percent now. 
MR. BANMAN: Okay . Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. McGill. 

MR. McGILL : Mr. Chairman, Mr. Parsons, I see your deficit at the end of the year 
for which we have a statement was $ 584 , 000. What ' s  the outlook for Phoenix Data for the 
coming year ? 

MR. PARSONS: We 've done much better. Since the beginning of the y ear, we've had 
three profitable months. It ' s  on the increase. We are making a profit. Actually we had a posi­
tive cash flow even with that if you take a look at the amount of the write-dJwns and so on. But 
we are over and above the write-downs and depreciation and so on. -- (Interjection) -- No , as 
a matter of fact we are putting money in the bank with it and vve are making a profit now. 

MR . McGILL: Do you anticipate, do your proj ections indicate that for the next year. 
March 31st, 1975,  this company will show a net profit ? 

MR. PARSONS: It will be very close. I haven 't got the figures, the auditor ' s  figures 

aren 't finalized. 
MR . McGILL : The year March 31st, 1974 ,  was just slightly less favourable than the 

previous y ear, is that correct ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. We have a small loss this year even after all the depreciation 

write-down at the 3 1st of March, 1975.  
MR. McGILL : I see.  You have a preliminary figure for that now. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. It' s  unaudited so I don ' t  want to disclose it. It ' s  very close to a 

break-even. 
MR. McGILL: Does the business appear to be on the upswing ? 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. We 've been out more actively and had much more contact with the 

various corporations,  other than the government, who have been coming to us for scientific 
work and that has been increasing. 

MR. McGILL: What percentage of your busines s ,  just offhand, is government business 
as compared to . . . ? 

MR. PARSONS: About 65 percent. 
MR. McGILL : Is g<nernment business ? 
MR. PARSONS: At the present time. 
MR. McGILL : I think you indicated to Mr. Minaker that you would not suffer any los s  of 

that government business if MTS proceeds in the . . . ? 
MR . PARSONS: No , I didn't  say that. I said I didn't think that MTS would be competing 

with them. We have two systems on our computer, the Student Aid Program and the Educational 

Program, that naturally if we lost that business it would ta.'<e us some time to make it up. But 
I don 't think that that would be the intent. to take those systems off our CDC 6500 and try to 
convert them to their 158s.  It would 'oe very costly and . . . for them to work up a program 
and there would be no ad·vantage to them to do it. There would be no saving to the Department 
of Education. 

MR . McGILL: So I interpret your remarks to indicate that you don 't  anticipate any re-
duction of your government accounts ? 

MR . PARSONS: On those two systems ,  no. 
MR . McGILL : Well, are there any other systems ? 
MR. PARSONS: Well there ' s  some from the Hydro and when they got their new com ­

puter last year, we were running between 1 5 , 000 and ZO, 000 a month for the Hydro. We are 

probably running now seven. But as they do more scientific work they will use us, but that' s  
all they 're using u s  for now. 

MR. McGILL : What percentage of your total capacity on that computer are you utilizing 
at present ? 

MR. PARSONS: Probably about 20 percent in the actual computer at the most. That ' s  
not what takes the time. 

MR. McGILL : So that you have the capability . . .  
MR. PARSONS: Oh, y es .  
M R .  McGILL : . . .  of handling a much greater workload. 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. It's a matter of getting the systems on. It ' s  producing the software 

� 
I 
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(MR. PARSONS eont'd) . . . . .  a':ld getting the systems 0'1 that takes the time. The computer 
itself physically is capable of a lot more than it's doing. 

MR. McGILL: During the p:tst year, there were a numb:Jr of ddays, many many delays 

in the Student Aid Program and most of the time when we enquired, yo".lr Phoenix Data Company 
- at least I now know that it was 0'1 that computer that the program was schedLiled - was getting 
most of the credit for the delays that were o�curring. Every time someone didn't get a student 
loan through on time, they said �he computer had broken down. Were there really that many 
breakd:Jws in the comp·�ter? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR. ENNS: So it was just a cop-out on the p.:trt of the Min 1.ster who was answering the 
questions. 

MR. McGILL: Well certainly there was . . .  
MR. PARSONS: There were d=lays in there but it's basically not d·�e to the computer. 

It's the setting up of the systems. 

MR. McGILL: But the delays. in the last year, it appeared to me, were mud1 greater 
than had ·:Jeen the case previously when the whole program was handled with:nt the benefit and 

the aid ·:Jf a computer system. 
MR. PARSONS: It may have been, I don't know. But it was not because the computer 

was breaking down. 
MR. McGILL: The computer was simply failing to d·=liver the proper material at the 

proper time. No breakd:Jwn, it just wasn't delivering. 
MR. PARSONS: It wasn't programmed prop-erly. 
MR. MINAKER: As far as a computer is concerned. if you put garbage in you get gar-

bage out. 

MR. PARSONS: That's right. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mina'zer. 
MR. MINAKER: Mr. Chairman, through you to Mr. Parsons. Mr. Parsons. What per­

centage of the 3:) percent of your business is done with MDC or comp.:mies that are either MDC 
owned or have loan commitments with? 

MR. PARSONS: None. 

MR. MINAKER: Than'<:: you. 
MR. PARSONS: I had to stop and ·':hink abo".lt it b·�t they are dDing some work for A. E. 

McKenzie b·�t that is not an MDC company. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Adam. 

MR. ADAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It's more on a point of privilege of the House. 
The questions that the Honourable Member for Brandon West was making in reference to the 
delays in the processing of the student STEP Program, I think it was? 

A MEMBER: Student aid. 
MR. ADAM: Student aid. yes. I think the Minister made it q·�ite clear in the House 

that the majority of the delays was because of the applications that were submitted by students 
were not properly filled out or that much of the information was lacking and I think that was 
very well cleared in the Ho·�se. So I d•Jn 't thin'<:: that we should pass any reflections on the 
computer as such. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. En'1s. 
MR. ENNS: Mr. Chairman. on the same p oint of order. I am pl_eased to acce[)t the 

fact that the Memher for Ste. Rose now accepts the official position of being an apologist for 
both the computer and the Minister in the House. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are there any more questions 0n Phoenix Data? Mr. Spivak. 
MR. SPIVAK: Mr. Parsons , I woYJd·2r if you ::an tell me whether any marke�ing organi­

zations u.3e the Ph-Jenix Data computer? 

d1ta. 

MR. PARSONS: No. I can't tell you that. 
MR. SPIVAK: Coald yo'.l tell me whether there are any p'Jlling organizations use the 

MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR. SPIVAK: Do you '-mow whether any political p3.rty uses the data? 
MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR. SPIVAK: Well I would like to . . . you know, I think these are . 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. 
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MR. PARSONS: I 'm not going to disclose who our customers are. 

MR . SPIV AK: I think we have a problem here because I think that this would be in a 
reasonably delicate area if in fact the information was correct and I 'm not suggesting it is. 

I 'm asking it as a direct question to you to determine whether any marketing agency, polling 
for a political party, is now using the services offered by a government Crown corporation. 
And that' s  the question. I'd like to be able to have that information furnished. As to whether 
it ' s  correct or not, that' s  a matter we'll discuss if the information is correct. If it ' s  not, it ' s  
obviously not a m atter for discussion. But I wonder i f  that information could be obtained :for 
this committee. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Green. 
MR. GR EEN: Mr. Chairman, I am fir st of all unaware of any such thing to start off 

with. But what if a marketing agency is using data or using the computer as a commercial cus­
tomer and paying commercial rates ? Would it be fair to the company to be talking about who 

their clients are and using the m achine. I 'm not aware of that but I wonder whether it is a per­
tinent quastion and if it is - if I'm unable to see the pertinence of it - maybe the Leader of the 
Opposition can help me. All I can tell him is that I know of no such thing, I know of no such 
arrangement and I know of no such arrangement with the Conservative Party , with the Liberal 
Party or with the New Democratic Party. But I am w1able to say that a m arketing concern 
which they hire uses Phoenix Data, I don 't know. 

MR. SPIVAK: Well I thin:-�: the problem area, and I have to s ay this to the Minister of 
Mines and Natur al R esources.  is more a problem area not for the political parties in opposi­
tion as much as it would be for the government who if this is the case - and I'm not suggesting 
it is - I  want to make that very clear. - -(Interjection) -- No, I ' m  not suggesting it but I think 
we're entitled to obtain information and I think if the information is given that it is not so then 
we'll accept it. If the -- (Interj ection) --

MR . CHAIRMAN: Order please. 
MR. SPIVAK: Well that would be an interesting thing because you know if that was hap­

pening then you c an . . . 
MR . PARSONS: I know of no polling group that is using it but I will inquire and if it . 
MR . GR EEN: Then we'll have to decide how the Corporation wants to deal with it. I 

d•Jn't know. 
MR . PARSONS: Our computer basically isn 't set up to do that but I don't  know whether 

there is. 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Well that conclud·9S the questions - Mr. Minaker. 
MR. MINAKER : Mr. Chairman, through you to Mr. Parsons .  Is there a different . .. 
MR . CH AIRMAN : Order please. 
MR . GREEN: . . .  because I'm rather puzzled. If the Chairman of the Corporation was 

to determine that a polling group - a marketing agency that works for the Conservative Party 
was using Phoenix Data as a computer house - would ·;hat be disclosable, relevant information 
to give ? 

MR . SPIVAK: Well I think, Mr. Chairman, that it would 'ae more relevant if the govern-
m ent party was using it. 

MR . GR EEN : I want to know whether there are preferred rates.  I want to know . 
MR . SPIVAK: Those are the questions ,  those are the question . 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. Ord•3r please. 
MR . GREEN: . . .  we have telephones, we have hydro electricity. Mr. Chairman, I 

want to m a'"e full disclosure that the New Democratic Party buys stationery , they buy it from 
houses, some - I  don't  know - m aybe we have financed some stationery house; we buy elec­
tricity which is from a Hydro corporation, we buy telephone systems ,  we buy many other 
things. We don't  buy enough because we don't  have enough money. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Order please. 
MR. GR EEN : But we buy all of these things -- (Interjection) -- yes,  comic books. 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Spivak. 
MR. SPIVAK: I think the relevant point here is that we ' re dealing - and I say this - and 

again the question was asked, Mr. Chairman, whether the Chairman was in a position and 
seized Jf any information that he could give us. He obviously isn't. I would hope that he would 

be able to con fir m that there wasn't -- (Interjection) -- But just allow m e  to finish and then 
you can make your remarks. There 's  no difficulty , we've got a long evening. 
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MR. SPIVAK cont'd) 
But the thing that I think would be of concern to me and I think that we have to - and maybe 

this leads into other questions. This is a company that has been out in the marketplace seeking 
clients in the private sector, seeking clients under negotiated arrangements with respect to the 

transactions that are taking place. I think you'll acknowledge that and I think that's been its 
accepted practice, a company in competition, and this has bee::J. stated over and over again with 
respect to this company. Therefore I think this does put it into a different category than a util­
ity wh·::> is providing a service that's common to all. And I am now saying that if the information 
was to be furnished in a positive way, then I think appropriately not in this committee but in the 
House, we would have the opp0rtunity to discuss it. If the information is not so, then having 
declared that information not to be so, there's no issue to be discussed. 

MR. GREEN: Well, Mr. Chairman, that is a traditio::J.al fishing expedition. If the hon­
ourable member has allegations to make concerning the New Democratic Party getting free or 
cut -rate service from Ph::>e::J.ix Data, I would by very interested in knowing it and if it's given 
to me then I will investigate it. But as a bland question, does any party . . .  for all I know the 

board of Phoenix Data may be friendly to the Conservative Party and are supplying that infor­
mation. But I could not ask that questio:J.. It would not be a relevant question. Who is the 
board of Phoenix Data? I'd like to know who the board ::>f Ph::Jenix Data is. Find out. if they're 
all Tories. 

MR. SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, just on the point of privilege. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Spivak on a point of privilege. 
MR. SPIVAK: Yes. Well, it's just a comment rather than a point of privilege to the 

Minister. The Minister is concerned ab::>ut a fishing expedition. My understanding of this com­
mittee is that we 're entitled to ask questions and we are entitled to get information. 

MR. GREEN: S. J. Parsons, -- (Interjection) -- as far as I know, that's n:Jt right. 

Shutiak, MacDonald. None of these people. to my knowledge, are not Tories. And I say in the 
style of Mr. Spivak that they are Tories until they are proven otherwise. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is that all the questions? Mr. Minaker, I'm sorry. I forgot about you. 
MR. MINAKER: Mr. Chairman, I yielded to the Minister when he interrupted there. I 

was wondering, Mr. Chairman, through you, are there varying rates for differe::J.t customers 

at Phoenix Data? In other words. whether it's government agency or a commercial private en­
terprise. Are there different rates or d:J they both qualify for . . .  

MR. PARSONS: There are different rates based :m volume and that's normal in the com­

puter business. 

MR. MINAKER: Whether they be government or ? 
MR. PARSONS: It doesn't matter what they are, it's the volume that determines their 

rates. 
MR. MINAKER: Thank you. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: That concludes the questions on Phoenix Data. Proceed to Saunders 

Aircraft Corp::�ration Ltd. Yo".l have your financial stateme'lt and an up-dated financial state­
me'lt year-end. September 30th, March, 1975. Mr. Johnston. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON: Mr. Parsons, I'm looking at the financial statement and I note ::�n 
Page - well the insert after Page 2 is the balance sheet and it's not signed by the directors. 

Does that mean anything or . . . ? 

MR. PARSONS: No, the one that's in our Minute Book is. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: I believe this q'.testion was asked in previous years as the deficit 

has mounted. Could you tell me what the projection is at the present time taking into account 
that $3 0 millio'l are owing. How many aircraft would have to be built and marketed 'oefore the 
$ 30 million could be repaid? 

MR. PARSONS: We J.re at the present time redetermining that. It's a matter of the es­
calating price costs and what the sale price of the plane is. I think I stated last year, we had 
estimated about 160 planes. If we accelerate the top e'ld the same type as the costs. then that 
won't vary, but costs are accelerating fairly rapidly. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON: So, Mr. Parsons, you're saying that as of last year with the moneys 
owing, 160 planes would have to be built and marketed. What is your projection at the present 
time? 

MR. PARSONS: I don't have that proj ection. As I say, we are working on it, but it's 
going to be higher. The costs of building them are going higher and the program has taken quite 
a lot longer than we expected through delays in deliveries and in engineering. 
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MR . G. JOHNSTON : Well, Mr. Parsons, I find that a difficult answer to . 
MR . PARSONS: It' s  a difficult question. 

June 3, 1975 

MR . G .  JOHNSTON : . . .  to digest. If you knew last year , you don 't  know this year , and 
you've had it under constant surveillance I would think for the past year. Is it giving away a 
trade secret to ask what the mark-up on an airplane is ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON : Well if you could tell us, based on the deficit last year, if it was 
160 planes required to break even. 

MR . PARSONS: You could figure it out, there was roughly 150 , 000 - 170 , 000 per plane. 
MR . G. JOHNSTON : Okay. So would it be 200 planes this year . in that neighbourhood ? 
MR. PARSONS: It could pos sibly be. It all depends on what the m arketplace will bear 

in the selling price. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON : What kind of a marketing organiz ation does Saunders have ? I 'm 

assuming that they must have to sell internationally because certainly Canada can't absorb your 
hopes as far as selling goes. Do you have s ales agents in other parts of the world and where 
are they and how m any have you ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes ,  we have sales agents.  We have our own sales people who contact 
the sales agents. 

MR . G. JOHNSTON: What I 'm getting at is how wide a network do you have? Are they in 
England , West Germany ? 

· 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. I 

MR. G. JOHNSTON: Could you tell us where your sales contacts are. 
MR . PARSONS: England , South America, Australia, Indonesia. We have a tentative 

program working in the United States that we are d:>ing, that our sales staff are d-oing themselves. 
MR . G. JOHNSTON : And out of your hopes for the future let us look at the past. Is it 

correct, the newspaper reports , that you have either orders or have sold 13 airplanes ? Or is  
that wrong and if  so, could you correct it. 

now. 
MR . PARSONS: No , we have sold eight, we've got orders for six right now. Seven right 

MR . JOHNSTON : That 's  all at the moment, Mr. Chairman. 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker. 
MR. MINAKER:  Yes. Mr. Chairman, through you. What is the selling price of the 

ST-27 or ST-28 at the present tim e ?  
MR. PARSONS: The new plane we are looking at about $ 850 ,  000. The last ones were 

about $ 650 , 000, the ST-27s.  Again it depends on the equipment in the planes . That can vary 
it $ 5 0 ,  000.  

MR . MINAKER : Then d:>es that m ean, Mr. Chairman, that the F ed 3ral Government 
paid extra money for extra equipment or the press information was incorrect when it said that 
the two planes were bought for $ 2  million. 

MR . PARSONS: No , ther e ' s  spare parts and maintenance in that, included in it. I think 
if you saw the original release on that it was $ 75 0 ,  000 per plane as they were equipped. 

MR . MINAKER :  Mr. Chairman, through you. How much of the work that's going into 

the development of the aircraft is being done in California ? 
MR. PARSONS: There' s very little now. There was a fair amount of engineering there 

a year ago but there ' s  very little engineering being done in California, it ' s  all being done here. 

MR. MINAKER :  Are all the jigs being manufactured in Gimli ? 
MR . PARSONS: No, not by a long way. 

MR . MINAKER : Where were they manufactured ? 
MR . PARSONS: England. Some down in Eastern Canada and some in the States .  
MR . MINAKER: What percentage o f  the manufactured jigs were manufactured :>utside 

of Manitoba ? 
MR . PARSONS: I don 't  know the percentage but there is quite a great number. I would 

say the great majority were manufactured outside of Manitoba. 
MR . MINAKER : Would that represent a major portion of the development cost ? 
MR . PARSONS: It ' s  a major cost of the plant, yes. 
MR . MINAKER :  Have you any idea how many millions of dollars that would be -through 

you, Mr. Chairman. 
MR . PARSONS: Oh probably a million and a half in jigs. I shouldn ' t  say that. I would 

like to check that out. There ' s  about a million and a half in that area. 
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MR. MINAKER: Was this work spread throughout the United States or was it done with 

one company or two or . . . ? 
MR. PARSONS: No, the greatest propDrtion was done in the United Kingdom. There 

was only maybe two or three companies in the United States used. and there's two in Eastern 
Canada. 

MR. MINAKER: There was some ·work done in California was there n::>t. Mr. Pars0ns? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. MINAKER: Do you know the name of that company? 

MR. PARSONS: No I don't. They made the tailplanes a"ld ·;he air intakes and cowls, b•.1t 
I don't know the name of the company. 

MR. MINAKER: Did they not also ma"lufacture the wing jigs? 
MR. PARSONS: The wing? 
MR. MINAKER: Jigs. 

MR. PARSONS: They may have. I don't kn·ow. I'll take that as notice if you want the 
answer for it. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minaker , the press is looking very confused when you're talking 

about jigs, what jigs are. Possibly you should explain. 
MR. MINAKER: Not what you think they are, Mr. Chairman. I would think that probably, 

Mr. Chairman, that the C hairman of MDC would be just as well equipped to explain what jigs 
are as I am and I'm sure he'd be prepared to do so. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Well you explained what software was this afternoD:J. and I th::>ught it 
was rather interesting. 

MR. MINAKER: Why I raised the point, Mr. Chairman. was, I was wo"ldering if any 
former employees of this particular comp.:my in Califoruia are now employed as administrators 
at Saunders or were formerly employed by . . .  

MR. PARSONS: What company are you talking about? Then I could tell yo:J.. Do you 
have the name? 

MR. MINAKER: ATC is O"le of the companies. I think it's Aircraft Tank Corp-oration. 
If they are a company that's doing the manufacturing of the jigs. 

MR. PARSONS: Not that I know of. 
MR. MINAKER: I would be interested ;oo, Mr. Chairman, in finding out if in fact this 

company was under co!ltract to Saunders and if there are any for mer employees of either 

Saunders or this company presently employed by S'iunders or that company. 

Mr. Chairman. thro•.1gh you to Mr. Parsons. How many firm o;·ders do you iJ:Oe;3ently 
have either for the - I believe all of the ST-27 mod·els are now sold - how many of the new air­
craft, the ST -28 do you have firm orders for? 

MR. PARSONS: We have in California 2 plus 2 with d·eposits. Ind·onesian order there's 
2, but the financing still isn't arranged with those. As I said last year. we're still working 

with the government over there, it's very difficult. And we have one other with a cash depasit. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Green. 
MR. GREEN: I hope Mr. Minaker will let me, because I don't like to see an answer go 

by that will be misunderstood. When he said they're all sold I believe that some are ::>rders 

which . . .  

MR. PARSONS: They're ::>rders with deposits. 
MR. GREEN: . . .  of the present plane, they're orders with deposits but the sale has 

not yet been consummated? 
MR. PARSONS: Well they're sales contraets with a d·eposit. 
MR. GREEN: These are on the S . 

MR. PARSONS: As I say the Ind·O!lesia ane we've got the order with a deposit but they 
have to conclude their financing. If they don't d·o that then they don't get the planes --(Inter­
jection) -- No. the 27s aren't all sold. 

MR. MINAKER: How many 27s have we manufactured? Is it 13? 
MR. PARSONS: Twelve. 
MR. MINAKER: Twelve. Are there any parts left or are there going to be any further 

27s manufactured? 
MR. PARSONS: No. Not at all. 
MR. MINAKER: And ·they're not all sold? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 
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MR . MINAKER : Was there three sold to Colombia, one to Alberta, one to Ontario and 
one to St. Andrews, and then there 's  two that Saunders are flying which I believe the Federal 
Government have now purchased ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . GR EEN: The one to Alberta is still on lease ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes.  
MR.  MINAKER: And :hen there 's  two that are still unsold ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes.  
MR . MINAKE R :  Mr. Chairman, through you to Mr. Parsons.  Who is financing the air­

planes ?  Are we able to find private money to finance these airplanes or are the purchasers 
able to find private money or are we som ehow . . .  ? 

MR. PARSONS: We are financing them through MDC and Saunders for the Colombian 
ones and the two that are on lease, the St. Andrews and ;;he Bayview. Although the Bayview 
one should be off the lease because we have a guarantee for the majority of it for 450,  000 of 
the order from the Alberta Government. It will probably be one that is sold for cash. 

MR. MINAKER : On the new orders in the house will Saunder s be required to finance 
these aircrafts as well, carry the financing ? 

MR. PARSONS: Not the C alifornia ones. They are arranging their own financing. The 
other one as I say is up to the Indonesian Government. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Johnston. 

MR . GORDON JOHNSTON : With r espect to the financing of the ones that either MDC or 
Saunder s themselves are carrying the paper ,  are there any in default ? 

MR. PARSONS: Not default. The ones in Columbia are in arrears. We are not calling 
it default, it ' s  not entirely their fault. The airplanes can only fly so m any hours without the 
engines being taken off and Jverhauled, which they had to d:>, and they sent out to UAC L and 
they sat in their plant. Now they have never flown more than two planes out of their three all 
year , so their finances have dropped behind. We're not calling it in default, they are behind 
in their payments but there 's  a fairly good reason for it, I think there was several operators 
who had that problem. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Evans. 
MR . L. EVANS: Mr. Chairman, as a matter of clarification. I don't  know whether it 

was fully understood. As a matter of clarification I wonder if Mr. Parsons would elaborate 
when he refers to UAC L and just what we're talking about, because some of us may not be 
aware of what you're referring to. 

MR. PARSONS: I 'm sorry. That ' s  United Aircraft. They are the ones that m anufacture 
the PT6 engines that are on the Saunders aircraft. Under the rules and regulations those en­
gines must come off for checks and when they were taken off and sent to UAC L they were tied 
LIP in the strike. They could11 't get them serviced. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON : With respect to the arrears with this particular company it ' s  be­
cause they 're not d:>ing enough business to be able to pay . . .  

MR . PARSONS: No. 
MR . G. JOHNSTON : . . .  or is it because they ' r e  holding back payment because of what 

they consider to be deficiencies in the aircraft ? 

MR . PARSONS: No, they 're not holding bacl\: any payments because of deficiencies. They 
have done very well for a small airline but they ' r e  trying to finance three aircraft with the rev­
enue from two. As a matter of fact for a while ther e they were only flying one. 

MR . G. JOHNSTON : So they have purchased three aircraft on time payments ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes.  
MR . G. JOHNSTON : And you're not concerned about them being so far in arrears. Is 

that right ? 
MR. PARSONS: I 'm concerned because they 're in arrears but . .  
MR . G.  JOHNSTON : Well how much are they in arrears ? 
MR. PARSONS: I ' ll have to get that figure for you, I don't  know. But it ' s  between two 

and three hundred thousand. 
MR . G. JOHNSTON : Back to the figures you gave me earlier . I don't  recall you giving 

a production schedule for the coming year - as a matter of fact I guess I did11 't ask. Assuming 
that the company will have no problem in getting their certificate of airworthiness both U. S. 
and C anada. what is their production sched•.1le for the next year ? 
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MR. PARSONS: We run o::�e a mo'1th starting Octobar through to the e!ld of the year. 
They go up to two a month in April and ·:hey ru::-1 two a mo'lth for April, 1976 until the late fall, 
a!ld we hope to go to three a month by the beginning of 1977. I may ba oe1t a month ::>r two �m 

that, I haven't got the schedule with me. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: So that average.s pcol:u.bly 18 ah·plane.s a year. You're talking abo'lt 

the rest of this year and 1976. Is that average 18 airplanes for a year? 
MR. PARSONS: Well it would be over a year's time, it wo·�ld be 15, 16 mo'lths. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Su{lposing the cash flow improved eno'15h that they did.1't need acty 

more loans and if they have to manufacture in the neighb::>Cirho::>d ·Jf 2\J(J or more planes to break 
even, this means that they'd be at least 12 years with the one mod2l, going by what you have 
told us this evening, to repay their loans. Is that a reasonable stateme!lt? 

MR. PARSONS: No, they're going to three a mo'Jth. Did you not catch that? 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Yes, the first of the year in 1977. 
MR. PARSONS: 1977 yes. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: So then it would be aboe1t 7 to g years? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: When you have made inquiries in to the aircraft be1siness h::>w long 

d·Jes a mod•2l of this type of plane last before it has to be c�anged? We knoN that airplanes 
d::>n't change like cars, bu� there have to be new prototypes develop-ed, in other words keeping 

up with the comp3tition. Do you think that this company ca'J stay in a static position with one 
model and build 200 airplanes in the next 7 or 8 years with no difficulties in competing on the 

world market for a feeder air plane? 
MR. PARSONS: In the aircraft industry it's sh::>wn that. There hasn't been a model like 

this put into the commuter service. Probably yo'.lr closest one, your Twin Otter, has been in 
service well over that length of time. The DC3s that th-ey stopped :nanufacturing many many 
years ago are still in service and still in quite high demand. As yo·� say, the aircraft ind�stry 
isn't the same as the automotive and there hasn't been a::� aircraft of this �apa.city p'.lt into the 
commuter market. So the marketing people tell me that this is quite possible. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON: Just one other q•.wstion. In Price-Waterhouse and Co. 's Statement 
on Page 1. the second paragraph. they say, "We are unable to render an opinio'1 as to the re­
alizability of the deferred lircraft d2'Jelopment costs of $4. 857 million. 4. 8 million. Are they 
saying that they don't expect to see that mo'ley recO'!ered lt the pcesent pricing? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well explain what dJ yo·� chink that means. 

MR. PARSONS: This means what it says. We're unable to render an opinio!l and the 

auditors won't. They have no way of measuring. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well as watchdogs for the loan can you give us an opinio::�? 

MR. PARSONS: Well we expect to recover it. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well I d::>n't like to be d:lfficult but isn't it a fact that some time back 

the MDF, the board of directors refused ·;o ma1<e further adv-ances and Part II of the Act came 
into force and the Cabinet made the ad•rances? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: So really isn't it what this means. that in your judgment it was at 

that time beyond the point of no return and yo'.l exercised your judgment and :he Cabinet over­

ruled your judgment a'Jd :-�ow you're trying to handle the situation. Is that a fair statement? 

MR. PARSONS: We're still monitoring the fund:.ng. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Is that a fair summation, that while it isn't hopeless yo'.l dJn't like 

it or you would have le!!t the mo'Jey on your own? 

MR. PARSONS: No it became a very large d·Jllar and really our board felt that they should 
turn it back to the Cabinet. The Cabinet decided ::>n it every time our board loDked lt it because 

it was a neN advan�e each time sa it had to go to Ca'::Jinet anyway. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well, Mr. Parsons, do you find a difficulty in sorting out a loan 

that you have hopes that it will be repaid with a sacial benefit to a community? At what paint, 

as a person res;:>Onsible for the financing and recovering of loans which are really moneys from 
the taxpayers and a social benefit, d·J you draw a line or d::> you throw up your hands and just do 

the best you can because Cabinet overruled you? 
MR. PARSONS: No, our board try to a'lalyze it. There is no do·�bt in Saunders there's 

a socio-economic benefit to the area. 
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MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well probably you're not the one to ask this question. Then every 

community that finds itself in the position of Gimli is morally entitled to the same amount of 

money from a tax-backed development fund such as MDF. Would you not say so? 
MR. PARSONS: No I do not thin�< so. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: That's all. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. McGill. 

MR. McGILL: Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to tie down these units that have been pro­
duced. Since the beginning of the operations at Gimli, how many units were sold and delivered 
to customers? I think you said there Nere a total of 12 ST-27s. 

MR. PARSONS: That's right. 

MR. McGILL: B uilt at Gimli, or does that include the one flying prototype they brought 
with them? 

way. 

MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR. McGILL: There were 12 built at Gimli? 

MR. PARSONS: Oh pardon me. Yes, that includes the prototype. It was rebuilt by the 

MR. McGILL: Yes. But then there were really 11 built at Gimli? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR. McGILL: Twelve plus one? 

MR. PARSONS: The XOK was taken back and all redone. 
A MEMBER: They rebuilt it again. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes it was rebuilt. 

MR. McGILL: But when you started at Gimli they flew that airplane in here did they not? 
MR. PARSONS: That is correct. It wasn't certifiable at that point but it has now been 

MR. McGILL: There were 11 additional airplanes built at Gimli and then XOK or what -
ever it is was reworked in preparation for sale to the Federal Government. Is that right? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. It went through the same program as the others did. 
MR. McGILL: Yes. 
MR. PARSONS: There's really 13 because 005 is the prototype. 
MR. McGILL: So your production there is a total of 13 airplanes if you consider that 

the prototype airplane was built twice. eh? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. McGILL: And how many of those are now sold and delivered to customers away 

from the plant? 
MR. PARSONS: Well the two to the Federal Government are you considering those de­

livered? They're not delivered to anybody yet, they're sold. There's eight and there will be 
four left when they have completed their tests . . . 

MR. McGILL: Including the two to the Fed·eral Government that makes eight. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. McGILL: Six others, plus two to the Federal Government, is eight, and there are 
four to be sold ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. They've just come off the line. they're not . . .  

MR. McGILL: That takes care of the 27s. There is one hand-built 28 which you call 

the 27b. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. That will n ot ever be sold. 
MR. McGILL: And that is still in the flight testing area? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. We may eventually rework that for a demonstrator aircraft but 

it will not be sold to an airline. 
M R. McGILL: Okay. Now what about a prodi.lction line ST 28? How far is that from 

flight? 
MR. PARSONS: We're about half -way down on the first one. We've got three sets of 

wings through, I think, we're on the third Euselage. They're moving along the line. The 

first one . 
MR. McGILL: The Number One production line ST 28 is half -way down the line? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. It should be off the end of August. 
MR. McGILL: Are all the jigs in place on that prodJ.ction line or are you still waiting 

for jigs? 
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MR. PARSONS: Let me say this, that all the jigs to build the aircraft are not in that 
plant. Mr. Minaker was asking me about -we have .su:J-contracts that have the jigs. They're 

ma'<ing the jigs and the component parts. 
MR. McGILL: So that they're not all in place . . .  ? 
MR. PARSONS: They're !lot all in place at Gimli. It may not be econ:Jmical. Some parts 

of the plane co·�ld be built else;vhere. 
MR. McGILL: What is your prese!lt fore.�ast on when Numbel' One pc·od�ction line 28 will 

first come out the d:J::>r? 
MR. PARSONS: The 1st of September. 
MR. McGILL: The 1st of September. Is it correct that the flight test program cannot be 

completed, the C of A auth=>rization and the Fed·3ral Aviation USC of A cannot be completed 
.mtil that airplane is in the air? 

MR. PARSONS: That's correct. 
MR. McGILL: So that hJw long will it take - assumin;s you make yo·�r S•3ptember 1 dead­

line on flying that airplane - ho;v long dD yo:I anticipate after that it will take to complete the 
flight tests and obtain the U. S. Certificate of Airworthiness? 

MR. PARSONS: About six to eight weeks. There's not that much Df the program left. 

MR. GREEN: You asked about the U. S. certificate. 
MR. McGILL: Pardon me. 

MR. PARSONS: Well Mr. McGill knows how it works. I'm sorry, 
tion for those ·Nho dDn 't. MOT certification would be si.x to eight we.3ks. 
that, 0:1 the reciprocal program. 

I'll answer the ques­
The U. S. follow on 

MR. McGILL: I think you assured us last year that once MOT had .lp;Jroved it that it 
would :mly be a matter of days or a week or two before the F AA . . .  

MR. PARSONS: The F AA have still held :o that. 
MR. McGILL: About three or four weeks ago, or less I guess, there was a lay-off at the 

plant. Was that due to the fact that your prod1�tion line was not ready to go, that you we:::e mis­
sing required jigs for the p:::odgtion line aircraft? 

MR. PARSONS: No. The planes weren't far enough down. When they finished :Jff the 

last one out of the production line of the 27s . . .  
MR. McGILL: Yo<.I we:::e!l 't a':Jle to swing the full labDur force? 

MR. PARSONS: Not all of them. We tried to swing most of them. We've got some of 
those people recalled now. There is. oh, probal:Jly 10 of those recalled now. We try to nse 

them in che ddferent areas to speed up the other portions but some of them just - you can't dD 
that with them. 

MR. McGILL: Now of the four aircraft of the original Model 27, are they all ready for 

sale? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR. McGILL: Do they all have engines? 
MR. PARSONS: They all have engines now but they're not all - they haven't finished the 

testing. They all have engines on them but they all have to run through their flight tests. 
MR. McGILL: I see. Well the aircraft are complete and rolled •JUt the d:Jor bctt flight 

testing is not complete on them. What's the hold -up there? 
MR. PARSONS: Mr. Kirshmir is the only o:1e we l:lave to d) that and unfortu1ately he's 

very busy. But we are getting it throu.sh. 

MR. McGILL: Is the fact that your production line 23 is six months away having an effect 
upon the sales possibilities for the remaining four ST-27s? 

MR. PARSONS: No I d·)n't really think that's a valid reason. It was hDlding us up going 

after more 28 orders be.�ause we couldn't get good firm d·clivery dates and we did fall behind 

in our programs. Bu; I dJn't think it's hurting the ST -27. I thtnk th)se will be sold. 

MR. McGILL: What is the total staff noN at Saunders Aircraft? 
MR. PARSONS: 49:1. 
MR. McGILL: What red.Iction is that from your peal<? 
MR. PARSONS: Pard·JU me? 
MR. McGILL: What is the red1ction from your peak employment? 
MR. PARSONS: Oh they were up to about 520. It was about that, around 520. --(Inter­

jection)-- 530 in February. 
MR. McGILL: WelL Mr. Parsons, we've had a number of projections as to the time 
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(MR. McGILL cont'd) . . . . .  that will be taken to get certification from MOT and from F AA 

and they almost always seem to be very optimistic. Have you any reason to believe that this 
estimate you give us now of September 1 is any firmer than the ones that you gave us last year ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, we have everything that we pretty well need :m hand which we 
didn't last year. Our program fell well behind, as you know. Most of the air tests have been 
done and eompleted . As I say about 85 percent of the tests are completed where we were j ust 

starting into that program last year. We d�d [all well behind because of shortages both in en­
gineering and component parts for the test planes. 

MR. McGILL: The last indication you gave of the time likely to be taken to complete the 
F AA tests was some time in August or September of 1974. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes .  
MR . McGILL: You' r e  a year out on that one . 
MR. PARSONS: Yes .  

M R .  McGILL : Was the accident that occurred the other day on a nose wheel that did:1't 
fully extend on landing, was that one of the aircraft sold to the F ederal Government ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. McGILL: Was the damage extensive ?  Is that going to delay the start of the . 
MR . PARSONS: The airplane is flying today . 
MR. McGILL: It ' s  in the air again, eh ? 
MR. PARSONS: It ' s  very very minor . 
MR. McGILL: It was a partial extension , was it, of the nose-wheel and there was no 

damage to the fuselage I take it ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. The nose-wheel d,oor was torn back. But the plane is flying today 

there wasn 't . . . 
MR . McGILL : Is this plane being used to train pilots for the commuter service ? 
MR. PARSONS: We 're not training pilots for the commuter service because it ' s  not an­

nounced who is going to do it. We have been training some Manitoba Government air service 

pilots. 
MR. McGILL: On another subj ect, Mr. Parsons. You mentioned that this aircraft com ­

pany in South America sent their PT6 s back to the factory for major overhaul. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . McGILL : Were there not other overhaul bases that were available ? That ' s  been 

a strikebound [actory for a year. 
MR. PARSONS: We had the same problem -- (Interjection) -- No, there isn 't. 
MR . McGILL : There is no other overhaul base in Canada that can do these ? 
MR. PARSONS: Not that we could find. We had to send our engines back there too. 
MR. McGILL: What is the overhaul time now, the m ajor overhaul time ? Is it up in the 

thousands of hours ?  
MR. PARSONS: 2, 500 to 3 ,  000 ' s  inspections are still at 2, 000 I think. 
MR . McGILL: I 'm surprised that there is no other place for major overhauls of P T6 s  

because that' s the equipment that' s in the Twin Otter. 
MR. PARSONS: That is correct. 
MR . McGILL : Are all the Twin Otters on the ground ? 
MR. PARSONS: Your Bell helicopter is using the same engine. 
MR. McGILL : What' s  happening in the aircraft industry ? Are they all coming to a stand­

still because of lack of . . . ? 

MR . PARSONS: No, but we're having a lot of difficulty getting them done though. Its 
been a serious problem with anybody using them. 

MR . CHAIRMAN: Mr. Banman. 
MR . BANMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I understand correctly, right now we are 

training people from the Government Air Service on this Saunders aircraft ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. BANMAN: Are they flying daily ? 

MR. PARSONS: I d on ' t  know about daily. 
MR . BANMAN: Have they logged a fair number of hours already ? 
MR. PARSONS: Oh they 've only been doing this for about four or five days, so I don 't 

:mow how many hours they'd log. 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Mr. Johnston. Mr. Banman proceed. 

• 
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MR. BANMAN: No, Mr. Chairman, I have some more questions. Most of the questions 
have been asked that I was asking with regards to the Colombia sale. The notes receivable on 
the assets of the balance sheet, notes receivable secured by chattel mortgages on aircraft and 

personal guarantees, does that represent to the Colombia sale? 
MR. PARSONS: Not entirely. There's also St. Andres and Bayview in that figure. 
MR. BANMAN: And those - ab:mt $ 3 million . . . 

MR. PARSONS: That's what it is, yes. 

MR. BANMAN: Ab0ut $ 3 million. A while ago I read an article in the newspaper that 
said that Saunders was selling a fair number of spare parts from the Herons to the United 
States. Out of the sale of aircraft and spare parts 0n the statements of operation and d eficit, 

I wonder if you would give us a breakdown as to what the sales of aircraft and sales of spare 
parts were. It's $ 2 , 4 53, 0 0 0 .  

MR. PARSONS: I don't have that; I'll take that a s  n·:> tice and get it for your. 
MR. BANMAN: The spare parts being sold are those parts that are being take:-� Jff of  

the old Herons? 

MR. PARSONS: Partly. 

MR. BANMAN: I imagine when - you've :run out of old Herons now I imagine? 

MR. PARSONS: Oh yes. We've sold the engines. There's quite a few saleable parts 
out of one when you strip it down. 

MR. BANMAN: The other question was with regard to the engine. Last year because 
of the strike I think you only had one engine on hand and I'm wondering, is that improving at 
all? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. BANMAN: So you dJn't see any problems in the foreseeable future as far as 
MR. PARSONS: No, they seem to be CJperating quite well. 

MR. BANMAN: The interior design of the airplane, the colour cod ing and that, was that 
done by a U. S. firm? 

MR. PARSONS: I d :m't think so. I don't know, I ' ll have to . . .  

MR. BANM AN: I woC�d er if you would check that. 
MR. PARSONS: We make our own seats. What did you mean? 

MR. BANMAN: No . I mean the interior d esigning as far as colour co- ordination and that. 
I'm wondering if it was dJne by a firm in Denver. 

MR. PARSONS: I'll take that as notice, I don't know. 
MR. BANMAN: Excuse me. Just for clarification Mr. Parsons. You mentioned chat 

you'd get us a breakdown on the sales. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. BANMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Johnston. 

MR. GORDON JOHNSTON: Well with respect to the $ 30 million that has been invested 
by MDF - and I suppose the interest rates vary d e pending OYI the years that the loans were made -
what is the average rate of interest on the 30 million? Would it be 9 percent or 10? 

MR. PARSONS: It would be ab out 9 percent. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: So that means that they have a debt load of about $2. 7 million a year, 

which would account for ab out 15 airplanes in the production. Now I'm just putting the figures 

together as you give me. Is that a fair assumption? 

MR. PARSONS: I'd have to work it out. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well if it's $ 2 . 7 million debt load . 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: . . . $ 170, 0 0 0  an airplane. So they really can't pay more than the 

interest urttil 1977 when you go into 36 aircraft per year production. Is that right? My rough 
figures. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. GREEN: You can always cancel the debt load. 
MR. G. JOHNSTON: Well all I can say is go od luck to your sales force because they have 

to sell q•.tite a few airplanes. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minaker. 
MR. MINAKER: Mr. Chairman, earlier Mr. Parsons indicated when answering to Mr. 

McGill that o:-te of the major reasons for the delay in getting the certification was that there 
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( MR. MINAKER cont'd) . . . . .  was some component parts - there was a shortage of them 

or missing. Was that with regard to the S -27B aircraft that these components were missing 

that there was the delay? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. And the 27s. The whole production. The undercarriage was 15 
months. 

MR. MINAKER: And this has caused delay? 
MR. PARSONS: That was one of them. Our e ngineering was delayed too. 
MR. MINAKER: The delay in missing parts has caused this almost a year delay? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. MINAKER: Well wouldn't these missing parts be r equired before you could fly the 
aircraft? These components? 

MR. PARSONS: I'm sorry. I missed the . . .  
MR. MINAKER: Well you know I have a copy of the letter . 
MR. PARSONS: We can't fly the airplanes without all the parts there. 
MR. MINAKER: What I can't understand is we have a letter from you to Mr. McGill 

dated August 13th. 1974, and at that time you indicated the S -27B had been flying as of July 

15th of that year. 
MR. PARSONS: It was, yes. 
MR. MINAKER: I'm wondering how missing components could delay it a year after it 

was already flying, the approval. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes but the program was behind then. 
MR. ENNS: There was nothing wrong with it, it just didn't have any wings. 
MR. MINAKER: Well what has caused delay since the plane started Hying? 
MR. PARSONS: Basically e ngineering. 

MR. MINAKER: That's a good answer to give an engineer. Mr. Chairman, through 
you. You indicated that some of the work in your production of the ST -28 would be done out­

side. Can you indicate what percentage of this work will be - of the manufacturing - will be 

done outside? 
MR. PARSONS: A percentage of the cost. I would have to . . .  
MR. MINAKER: Just a ballpark figure, Mr. Chairman. Within 10 percent or something. 

MR. PARSONS: No, I'm g·Jing to add it up because you see the engines - just right off 
the top, the engines are a big part of it and I'd have to add up the components. 

MR. MINAKER: No, I'm thinking more of nose section, tail section, wings, etc. , be­

cause I understand from your answer that some of these jigs are not located Ni.thin the factory 
so that I would presume somebody else will have them located in the factory and will be manu­
facturing t]l.at particular component. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, we will own them. What we have done on these ones that are 

being manufactured -:mtside. it was the responsibility of the people who were d::>ing it to make 
j igs, they belong to us. We can pull them back in but on the first 15 ship sets I don't know, 

maybe 15 percent. 
MR. MINAKER: Well am I correct in that the tail section jig is being manufactured in 

California. the n ose section and the wing section? Would that mean then that those sections 
of the aircraft would be manufactured in California? 

MR. PARSONS: I d:m't know whether they're being manufactured - the tail plane, the 
air intakes, the cowls, are being manufactured in the United States. Now you say it's Califor nia, 

you could be right. The elevator and r udder is in Canadian Aircraft Products in Vancouve r ;  
the fins are Aviation Traders of England; the undercarriage i s  partly England and partly in 

Ajax, Ontario. The wind screen is made in the States. 

MR. MINAKER: In Saunders itself is it the constant section jig that's in Saunders. is 

that what it is? The assembly, roof section and the keel, and the side panel? Is that what . .  

MR. PARSON S :  Yes, that's all in Saunders. 
MR. MINAKER: The five j igs. 
MR. PARSONS: And the wings. 
MR. MINAKER: Then my next question, Mr. Chairman, would be: Is there a fir m con -

tract with these companies to produce so many sections for the new aircraft? 
MR. PARSONS: So many sets? 

MR. MINAKER: Yes. 
MR. PARSONS: Fifteen sets basically. 
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M R .  MINAKE R :  The;:-e is a firm contract at this time ? 

M R .  PARSONS: Yes.  
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MR . MINAKE R :  And i s  that on the basis that whether or not the plane receives cer�ifi-
c ation ? 

M R .  PARSONS : That has no b e aring 0'1 it. 

MR. MINAKER : That has no bearing •m it. My next question . . .  

M R .  PARSONS: It would have to be done before we get the fi rst certification because we 
have to have the parts to put on the first O"l e that comes off the line. At that point we wo•1ld 

have all 15 sets. 

MR. MINAK E R :  Mr. Chair m an .  I'm sure M r .  Pars 0�1s is aware that there ar e se>me 

aerospace companies in Manito'Ja besides Saund er s ,  and I was wo"l dering if any of them h.1d 
approached him for pos sible changes to constru�t these sectio'1s. 

MR . PARSONS: We approached them. 

MR . MINAKER : Mr.  Chairma'1 . has Mr. Parsons approached C A E  to 3 ee if they could 

d·J any work ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes.  They dJ not have the capabilities o[ m aking thto jigs and they are 
not a production fir m .  W e  have tried ·:hem o n  occasion .  

MR . MINAK E R :  Have they entertained the idea of p-::>ssi.bly o f  j i g s  being lo.�ated i n  their 

factory and assembly of panel s ? 

MR . PARSONS: They could be after the initial ones are all d o'1e. 

MR . MINAK E R :  So that there i s  pos sibly a potential . 

M R .  PARSON S :  Quite a ways down the line. y e s .  

M R .  MINAK E R :  . . .  if they a r e  competitive that they might be cJ.pable o f  providing this 
work. Mr. Chairman, with regard :o the ST-27B prototype,  at any tim e ,  M r .  Parsons . were 

you with the understanding that that plane might get c ertification both MOT and F AA ? Now I 

s ay . 

M R .  PARSONS: The p rototyp-e plane ? 

M R .  MINAK E R :  Yes. C ertification, not type certification but actual certification for 

airworthin es s ,  that particular aircraft. 

MR. PARSONS: It wouldn ' t  get a . . .  

MR . MINAK E R :  No . I asked you if you at any time were yoctrself u11der the impr ession 
that this airplane woctld r eceive certification ? That particular airplane. Not a type approval 

but . . .  

M R .  PARSON S :  It will get a type approval. It wo"l ' t  . . .  because it ' s  not a m anufactur ed 

ST-2 8 .  

MR . MINAK E R :  No . that ' s  'l O t  what I aske d ,  Mr . Chairma'1. I asked that at any time, 

Mr. Parso'1 s ,  were you with the impres sion that the ST-27B prototype aircraft, that particular 

u11it. wo•1ld r eceive certification ? 

M R .  PARSONS: That particular m1it. No. It will be the one that d :J e s  all the cer tifica­

tion program but the actual ship itself will n:>t get an ST-28 c el"tificate. It has not bee!l manu­

factured . 

MR . MINAKE R :  Will it get an MOT c ertific ate ? 
M R .  PARSONS: Ye.s. We could pr obably get the same typ.e of c er tificate that you arc 

for the 27. It would be a typ•3 c ertificate for a single - for one-time airc raft though. 

MR . MINAKER : Mr. Chair m an .  I am with the U fl d 2r standing that when the ST-27B was 

constructed and p·1t toge�her , and presum ably to the d r awings of the now ST-23 m odel it ' s  called . 

that when they proeeeded to p•1t the cockpi.t c anopy in place they foufld it was not too - or would 

not fit when it was constructed :o d c awings. Is that correct ? 

M R .  PARSONS: I d·Jn ' t  know. 

MR. MINAKER : Sarely. Mr. Ch3.ir m an .  I would think that Mr. Parsons would ·Je . . .  
M R .  PARSONS: It fit s .  I ' v e  flown in the plane. 

MR . MINAK E R :  . . .  and that a custom cockpit c anopy was required to be constructed 
and as a r esult the plane did n ' t  m e et the d r awing s ,  and therefo r e  would not r eceive c ertifica!:ion. 

MR . PARSONS: I d on ' t  know if it d id .  I c e rtainly wasn ' t  told about it if it d i d .  It fits.  

It ' s  d :m e  all  the flight tes ting. 
M R .  MINAK ER : Yes. I think,  M r . C hairman , it fit after a n e N  one was b:1.: 1t to fit the 

m ain fuselage. and this is why I was asking . . .  

MR . PARSON S :  No the wind scree!:! that ' s  in there is the one that was certified. 
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MR. MINAKER: There was not an extra custom-built cockpit canopy manufactured for 
the ST 28B ? There wasn 't two canopies manufactured ? 

MR. PARSONS: I don't know. 

MR. MINAKER :  I wonder , Mr. Chairman, if Mr . Parsons would try and find out for us 
to see if in fact that was part of the delay. I think this would be of interest to us and I would 
think would be probably a costly part of the manufacture when this occurred. That 's  all for 

now, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Spivak. 

MR . SPIVAK: Mr. Parsons , there are a number of questions in a number of d:ifferent 
areas, but just one that I 'd  like to just sort of handle very quickly just because the newspaper ' s  
in front o f  me. Some time ago in December of - I 'm not sure of the y ear, I would assume 
1973 or 1972 - the Premier travelled ·;o Russia and he hinted of a possible deal with this ST-27. 

I assume nothing came of that. 
MR. PARSONS: Not to my knowledge. 
MR . SPIVAK: Were there any negotiations whatsoever with Saunders ? 
MR. PARSONS: No . Not that I was advised of. 
MR . SPIVAK: So much for the Russian connection. I wonder , Mr. Parsons ,  if y ou can 

indicate the shareholding now, or is the statement that we have in front of us as of March, 1974, L 
indicative of what the shareholding . . .  

MR . PARSONS: The shareholding position is the same. 1 
MR . SPIVAK: Are there any options held by the shareholder s on purchase b:wk or pur-

chase of additional shares ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes I think the optio!l is proceeding. There are options that the share­

holders had . . .  
MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Green. 
MR . GREEN: Mr. Chairman, just before we get further away, and again so that there 

is no misunderstanding. At the time of the Premier ' s  Russian visit it had ';o d:> with hydro ,  
and where h e  did d:lscuss Saunders planes, I don't think that Mr. Parsons was the Chairman 
of the Manitoba Development Corporation. -- (Interjection) -- No, but Mr. Spivak is suggest­
ing that there were no negotiations with the Russians with regard to that plane and I know that 

there were. 
MR. SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, I asked Mr. Parsons certain questions and I received 

the information. 
MR. PARSONS: That ' s  right. 
MR. SPIVAK: The one who is suggesting it is Mr. Green. 
MR. GREEN: Well, Mr. Chairman, you :mow if it had not been for Mr. Spivak ' s  remarks .  

so  much for the Russian negotiations,  I would n o t  have said anything. But Mr.  Spiva.k said that 
as if it didn't  occur. It was written llP in the papers and -vas nothing. I wish to make it q•.t ite 
clear that I am aware that the Premier did discuss with the Rus sians and the Russians discussed 
with the Premier the Saunders Aircraft. 

MR. SPIVAK: I wonder then if, Mr. Parsons, you can indicate whether the Russians o t  

representatives for the Russian commercial aircraft company were in M anitoba and ·-ver e in 
Gimli. Are you aware of that ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes ther e was a group of Russians from - Russian engineers out at Gimli 
some time ago ,  but I have no idea . . .  

MR . SPIV AK: A Russian commercial aircraft company ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. What do you call a Russian commercial aircraft ? It was the . . .  
MR . SPIVAK: The . . .  
MR . GR EEN: Bolshevik Airlines Limited. 
MR . SPIVAK : Well I think . . .  
MR. GREEN: I don ' t  wish to m ake a big deal out of this.  The only thing is  that Mr. 

Spivak ' s  line of questioning definitely intended to leave the impr ession, as I saw it, that this 
was nothing, that it was a headline in the paper and that there were no discussions . There 
were discussions. 

MR. ENNS: It had nothing to do with the fact that the Russians wanted an aircraft with 
canopies that fit. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Order please. Mr. Axworthy. Mr. Spivak. 

MR. SPIV AK: Mr. Chairman. Mr. Parsons I wonder if you could indicate the rights 
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(MR. SPIVAK cont'dJ . . . . .  that oth-2r shareholders have, and ·Jy that I mean the �<ind of 

rights that they have for either purchase back or p·1rchase of new sharehold ings. 
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MR. PARSONS: If you look i n  the ne>tes a f  the minutes o n  8 under Sh:ue Ca;:>ltal i t  gives 
you the outstanding warrants. Those are the :mly warrants that are. Thare is no buy back 

arrangements as far as Sau1ders buying their shares back if that's what your're . . .  
MR. SPIVAK: Were there any ma':lagement contract or arrangemeC�ts whereby share -

holders had a right to purchase or management had a right to purchase shares? 
MR. PARSONS: There were but they' re included in these -.varca':lts. 

MR. SPIVAK: I wonder if . . .  
MR. GREEN: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Kaspersky advises me that the sone or the Russian 

head of the aircraft faetory was here in Manitoba loaking at that plane. Nothing was consum­

mated but they were working on it. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Spivak proceed. 
MR. SPIVAK: Well I'm sorry, the notes indicating. on note S .  state that warrants for 

certain shares expire which mean that there are no warrants now in existence at the present 
time. 

MR. PARSONS: There are still warran�s. The expiry dates are J anuary. 1975  to J:mu-
ary. 1977.  

MR. SPIVAK: No, it  says that i t  was subse.::pently determined :hat the warrants for . 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, that's right. But thJse ones are expired . 
MR. SPIVAK: Okay. I understand. Okay. That's fine. Good. I wonder if you can 

indicate when the first aircraft was sold to Colombia did ·:he pro:Jeeds, or were the proceed s 

d·eposited into the company, or was the transa·�tion outside of the c ompany? 

MR. PARSONS: The p roceeds from the sale all went to Saunders Aircraft. 
MR. SPIVAK: Yes I understand that, bu� did the pr o:Jeeds come into the company or were 

they paid to the s hareholders? Were they processed through the company or were they paid 
·OUtside of the company? 

MR. PARSONS: I d·on't really und•3rstand your question. The funds - the company re­

ceived the downp ayment and the MDC financed ':he balance. and 1:he funds of those went to the 
company. Now there was an outstanding on one aircraft. there -.vas an O'ltstanding mortgage 
on it that was paid off. 

MR. SPIVAK: To one of the shareholders? 
MR. PARSONS: No, he wasn't a sharelnlder. His name was Millard - Millard Air. 
MR. SPIVAK: And he was not a shareh.::> lder? 
MR. PARSONS: No. He was the mortgagee. 
MR. SPIVAK: So in effect the money came into the company and then the company then 

paid Millard out? Is that right? Or was the money paid directly to Millard? 

MR. PARSONS: Gosh I don't know how that- I don't know whether the bank had to pay off 
the mortgage before it was delivered or not. But the entry went through the company's books. 
I'm not qu.ite sure what you're - there was a mortgage and it was paid off out of the funds from 
the sale. 

MR. SPIVAK: The!l I'm asking whether the transaction went through the boo�{ S of the 

company. or the transactio'1 went outside the books of the company in terms of the actual pay­

ments? 

MR. PARSONS: I don't know. I'll have to ta'{e that as notice. The bJ.nk handled it out 

of New Yo:ck. The transactions would go through the company's boo'<s but whether the company 
actually paid the cheq•1e out or whether the bank gave them it to pay off the mortga ge , I don't 
know. 

MR. SPIVAK: In terms of the amounts of money that have been adv anced there is also a 

banking arrangement. Does the government guarantee, or does the lVIDC guarantee the bank, 
the bank that operates, or is the bank for Saunders Aircraft. 

MR. PARSONS: The company doesn't have a bank loan. 
MR. SPIVAK: No but it doesn't operate on an werdraft at all? 
MR. PARSONS: It doesn't operate on a bank loan. 

MR. SPIVAK: No bank loan, no overdraft requirements. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes, there's a $ 5 0 0 , 000 limit but . . .  
MR. SPIVAK: Is that guaranteed by MDC or by the government to the bank? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. It's guaranteed by MDC. 
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MR . SPIVAK: And is that shown as part of the total amounts that they have been loaned 

? 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: That' s  $ 500 , 000. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. When we guarantee it it has to be. 

MR. SPIVAK: Have there been other guarantees to the banks with respect to the financing 
of any of the planes that have been sold ? 

MR. GREEN: Mr. Chairman, any MDC guarantees as I understand have to be part of the 
financing arrangements. I d on 't  know whether there are or there are not, but if there are -
and Mr. Parsons will correct m e  if I 'm wrong - they have to be, when the MDC gives the guar- I antee it has to show . 

MR . PARSONS:  It shows as part of the loan. 
MR. GR EEN: . . .  it has to be shown as a commitment. 
MR. PARSONS: There are no other guarantees . . .  
MR. SPIVAK: On the sale of the aircraft to Colombia was financing through one of the 

chartered banks in Canad a, and was there guarantees by the government, or MDC or Saund ers ,  
with respect t o  that ? 

MR. PARSONS: Oh on the first aircr aft with the Bank of Montreal, yes. That' s  gone 
since then. 

MR . SPIVAK: That guarantee has been paid ·:>ff ? 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: And Millard has been paid off completely as well ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: And who paid him off ? Some of the financing of the airplane. the airplane 

itself has not been paid ·)ff. 
MR. PARSONS: No. We have paid it out of financing, yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: So you paid Millard out of the financing ? 
MR. PARSONS: Saund ers Aircraft paid him , yes. 
MR. SPIVAK: Saunders Aircraft. · Was he not a director of the company ? That was the 

point. Was he not a director ? 

MR . PARSONS: He was a director appointed by the MDC , he wasn 't a shareholder though. 
MR. SPIVAK: He was not a shareholder ; he was a director appointed by the MDC , and 

he had a mortga'Se on the fir st plane. 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. Long befor e we ever got involved in it. 
MR . SPIVAK: Yes, I und erstand that. 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. He ' s  not on now incidentally , but he was for a year. 

MR . SPIVAK: Well we have dir ectors of equity investment accounts as of March 21st, 
1975 and he' s  shown as a director. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: He's still a director then . 
MR. PARSONS: No , he's not now. 
MR . SPIVAK : Oh he's not now. But he was a director. 
MR. PARSONS: He wasn 't reappointed.  
MR. SPIVAK: Well as of March 2 1st, 1975,  he was a director, according to this . 
MR. PARSONS: Yes, it' s only been in the last -- the Annual Meeting was after we got 

these statements was . . . 

MR . SPIVAK: Well what I want and would like you to be in a position to assure the com ­
mittee, and I ' m  not sure that you can do that at this point without investigating the matter a bit 
further, is that the funds that were made available as a result of the financing were in fact pro­
cessed through Saunders in payment of the mortgage owing to Millard on the plane and was not 
handled as a transaction outside the boo1<;:S of Saund ers. 

MR . PARSONS: The transactions would have to go through the boo1<;:s because I know that 
the mortgage is on there and they would have to put the transactions through to clear that mort­
gage off. 

MR. SPIVAK: Some time ago when we m et ,  at the time we talked in terms of consider­
ations that the board dealt with - and I brought Saunders in as an example at the time, and 
you ' re aware of what I referred to at the time - as to the nature of the decision -making with 
respect to the board. We 've got a reasonably unusual situation with r espect to what' s happened 
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(MR. SPIVAK cont' d) . . . . .  so far with r espect to Sau>d·"rs ,  and I 'm still at this p:>int try­
ing to determine realistically what happened. The juds-m e!lt. What happ ened. We ' re at a 
point now where in retrospect I think many people would �1ave d·:>ne things differ ently . However 
having said :hat I want to understand how the board operated, a::1d what co"lsiderations r eally 
were the factors in determining the continuatio'J. of the project, and the furthering of the 
amounts of money to be paid :\n. You have indicated that it was always determined on the basis 
of a commercial viability, taking into consideration the initial consideration for the area and 

the r eality of the fact that the air force base was closing. Having said that ! think that we now 
can establish that political considerations were a factor in terms of the board ' s  decisio'l . I 
wonder how, Mr . Parsons ,  how in the light of where we are today, how you can r econcile the 
period :>f 1972,  when very obviously at that period of time the board considered the po3sibil­
ities of winding up and liquidating the company and co'lsidered the impossibility of reaching 
the proj ections that were fir st forecast for the board , and further met on more than one occa­
sion and at that point determined •;hat the prosp·ects wer e both not good and that reali stically 
the viability wasn't there. I just wond·3r if you c an explain at that paint why the h:>ard d.id not, 

at that stage, say to the government, "It ' s  in your court. " or refuse to allo .v any more mo::1ey 
to be put in. 

MR. PARSONS: Well, Mr. Spivak, I have looked back through those minutes and ! don 't 
read in those minutes where they said it wasn't viable or so on. They reviewed �he whole 

Saunders situation. But at no point did I see it written up that they said it wasn 't viable and 
it wasn't going to m ake its proj ections or a'lything else. Th•2y considered all the alternate3 
at that time. I was a board member at that time and I remember we discussed all the vario·�s 
. . . of the company, but I don 't r emember the board of directors - nor have I seen it in the 
minutes - it' s  certainly not written up that it was deemed that. 

MR . SPIVAK: But, Mr. Parson s .  surely there were original proj ections giv en to you ­
forecasts, very optimistic for ecasts . and within a period :>f two months you wer e at that point 
dealing with the possibility of liquidation. Fu.�ther , you had also been dealing with the re­
quirements of  an additional c ash flow, substantial cash flow, that had not been proj ected two 
months earlier , and within a matter of a few months the board was 

MR . PARSONS: I d•Jn 't  remember it ju3t being two months. They had ·oeen there over 

a yea�. 
MR . SPIVAK: Well . . .  
MR. PARSONS: They had gotten through the first stage of the d evelopment then. 
MR . SPIVAK: Well let me r efer back to the minutes. February 1st ,  1972.  Mr . Kelly 

appeared before the board and cited c ertain aspects in his pr esentatio"l . U. S. certification 
projected July 1st. Prod�ction :>f thr ee ST's .  Profit situation to be achieved by May .  1973 .  
Production of  three aircrafts per month to prod..tce an annual gross r evenue of  $ 19 million, 
an annual profit of $ 2. 223,  000  before tax. Ad:litional financing of $ 1 . 800 ,  000  requir ed by 
May, 1973 for the ST-27B. Now those wer e the original proj ections of February, 1972. On 
May 3rd of 1972 you were revie wing. as a board . ba'l'zruptcy . liquidation and winding d:>wn o£ 

the company. 
MR . PARSONS: Well there was a d·3cision made in the first meeting to go ahead and 

then we' re closing it down, is this what you' re saying ? 
MR . SPIVAK: No . I 'm sugge3ting to you that . . .  
MR . PARSONS: I think in May - d idn 't it c arry it forward and then in May you're looking 

at whether yo� go ahead with the proposition so you' r e  discus sing the alternates ?  
MR. SPIVAK: No, I am suggesting to you that b3tween the period of February . . .  
MR. PARSONS: You rememb·er that board meeting better than I do and I was there. 
MR . SPIVAK: Well I can only go O'l the basis of what the memb·=r s themselves said. 

What I'm saying to you is that in February of 19 72 ,  very optimistic forecasts were presented 
to the board and. if I 'm correct, ther e was some money advan.�ed after that - I d·J'l 't know how 
much. Then the board within a p-eriod ·:Jf three months is d 3aling with wind ing down, winding 
up , bankruptcy , liquid.ltion, r eceivership, and :>bviously the board at that point has recognized 
that the optimistic forecasts that were proj ected three mo'lths earlier are not going to be met. 
And again , I just can't u·1der stand how the position could ':.e take!l that the board's  decision at 
that time was still based :>n commercial viability when the proj ections of its pr esident, made 
three months earlier, were obviously so incorrect that the board had to consider the positioYJ. 
that they were in three months after. 
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MR . PARSONS: Mr. Kelly presented it to us and I think all the alternates were brought 
up at a later board meeting. That ' s  what you are looking at. Before that decision was made. 

MR . SPIVAK: I 'm sorry ? 

MR . PARSONS: I think Mr. Kelly presented his reports and they were loo)<;ed into and 
the alternates were brought up at the May board m eeting. I d•Jn 't think ther e was a d•3cision 
made in February. He presented all his program, which was considered ::>ver the next three 
months, and then the decision and the alternates were looked at. 

MR. SPIVAK: Well in that board meeting it says ,  "Due to economic and �Jolitical fac ­
tors . . .  ' '  

M R .  PARSONS: Yes ? 
MR. SPIVAK: ". . . it was deemed aecessary to find solutions and maintain the oper­

ations of the company. " Those are the board minutes of the Manitoba Development Corpor ­
ation. They 're  their own board minutes which say ,  "Due to economic and political factors . " 
You've maintained that it was based on a commercial viability of the proj ect, but your o wn 
minutes, at the time that Mr. Kelly made his presentation , indicated economic and political 
factors. Then the question was asked : where are we now ? How can the MDC obtain owner­
ship and control of the company ? Where would we like to be, and how do we get ther e ? All 
right. Within three months you were looking at the winding up, bankruptcy . . . I MR . PARSONS: We were looking at the alternates ,  yes. 

MR . SPIVAK: Fine. Can you tell me,  where did you have any information furnished 
to you, if the president' s  proj ections were not accepted, that there was any comm ercial vi ­
ability to the proj ect ? 

MR . PARSONS: Did they say they weren 't  accepted ? I d::>n 't remember Mr . Kelly 's 
proj ections being rejected. 

MR . SPIVAK: Well, you know, Mr. Kelly ' s  proj ections ,  in the light of the experience 
of even six months afterwards ,  you know, are so far - we haven 't achieved them and I doubt 

very much we will ever achieve them. -- (Interj ection) -- Well, they weren't rejected thr ee 
months later ? The fact is that I think that d .1ring that period Jf time the board did consider 
the liquidation and the winding up. and :it ' s  more concerned about that than anything else. 
-- (Interj ection) -- Beg your pard·Jn ? 

MR . GR EEN: Well he can ask the questions.  Go ahead. 
MR . SPIVAK: I want to understand :1.ow the board arrived at the recognition that there 

was a commercial viability to the project and ·Jn what basis ,  what information, what analysis, 
what judgme'lt - business judgment - was there for them to be in a position to proceed with 
the project in 1972 based on his projections and the possibilities that were available to you 
of . 

MR. PARSONS: Mr. Kelly obviously convinced the board his proj ections were good. 
MR. SPIVAK: Is that really what happened ? Would you like to explain what Mr. Ault's 

position was during this period of tim e ? 
MR. PARSONS: I don't  know. 
MR . GREEN: Mr. Chairman, are we going to deal with every board member ' s  position , 

because I . . .  
MR . PARSONS: I don 't  thin:� Mr. Ault was a board member of S aunders then. 
MR . GR EEN: But furthermore, Mr. Chairman, I r eally think that the m ember is ask­

ing about the internal operations of the board, and the fact is that he has been rec eiving his 
answers from the chairman. I realize that he doesn ' t  like them , but the fact is that the 
chairman has given him his position, and at that time, let us recall Mr. Parsons was not the 
Chairman of the Board. 

MR. SPIVAK: No I understand �hat. But what I ' m  concerned about is becau5e I think 
the committee has to try and determine - we're in one hell of a mess now and we've got to 
try and determine how we got there and the judgment that was used, the business judgment 
supposedly used by people who were basing this on the commercial viability and ;'lot on the 
political considerations.  

MR. GR EEN : Mr. Chairman, let me make one point clear, that up until the guidelines 
were issued - which was som e time in the fall of 1973 although we had discussed them in­
formally before then - that the board was considering all the considerations that are referred 
to in the Act; that they had to m ake that kind of judgment and that was one of their problems. 
And that is why the board and myself got together to try to figure out where their position 
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(MR . GREEN cont'd) . . . . .  should stop and where the government' s  position sh�nld begin, 
and that was a different consideration than had guided ·the board und er the entir e period before­
hand . When the board was con.sid-aring Churchill Forest Industries, when they were considering 
Sprague plant, they were directed by the Act to ad as the assistant to the Minister of Industry 
and C ommerce in developing a program in the Province of Manitoba. 

MR . SPIVAK : Well , Mr. Chairman,  the fact is that I am now trying to u1derstand ,  and 
I think it's important for us to und erstand, at the time :.¥hen the board really considered liq ­
u:i.dation and winding up , how and on what basis they made the decision to proceed. Because 
it g0es to the whole cr edibility of the board - of which Mr. Parson.s was ·:mly a membGr and 

n-ot the chairman - and it goes to the whole question of trying to ur1der stand part of the problem 
area that we're in now. Again I put it to you: Mr . Ault, I don't think, was just another direc ­
tor . 

MR . PARSONS: I d idn 't know Mr. Ault at that point. He wasn't a d [r edor of MDC. 
MR. SPIVAK: Was he not a dir ector of Saunder s ?  
MR. PARSONS: I don ' t  believe so. 
A MEMBER : He became a dir ector . 

MR . PARSONS: He became a director of Saunders in 1973.  
MR. SPIVAK: Well, l et m e  r efer to min·.1tes of another meeting dated April 26 , 1972 . 

of the Manitoba De•J elopment Corporation, when Mr. Ault appeared - this is pcior to the May 
3rd meeting - in which he . . . 

MR . CHAIRMAN : What minutes are you referring to ? 
MR . SPIVAK: I ' m  r eferring to the minutes of the Manitoba Developm ent Corporation 

Board ::>f Directors meeting Wed1esd 3.y,  April 26 ,  1972.  When Mr . Ault d id 3.ppear and when 

he talked to the board - and .Mr .  Parsons ,  you're  listed 3.8 being present there .  and I d::m 't 
expect that you remember every m eeting, I ' m  not . . .  But he talked ·;o the board in dealing 
with the continuation of the operation, liquidating the company, placing the company in r ec eiv ­
ership, winding down to a prototype operation only , attempting a sale of the company . And he 
is listed here as a director of SaJL'ld·':!rs Aircraft and I kr1o w from the questions that we asked 
in the House d .1ring that period ·Jf time - and I go back to the Hansards. We tried �o determine 
.his exact relationship. We know that he had 7Jeen part of the troubleshooter involved in Flyer 

and was bro'..lght in as part of the troubleshooter in Saund er s .  And .1gain I put it to you, that, 
based ::>n these minutes and what he suggested . tha board at that point had before it only evi­
d·ence which would ind:.cate that the operation should have bee:-� closed.  There is nothing sup­

portive that I can see, and I dou'Jt very much whether you can prodc�ce anything supportive to 
ind�cate that it should hav e been continued . other than the political consid·eration. And I put it 
to you quite bluntly. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Spivak, you are talking about political considerations.  Possibly 
you should consider those questions . . .  

MR . SPIVAK: Well, Mr. Chairman, just on the p-oint of order .  The political consid er ­
ations are mentioned in �he minutes of th3 Board ::>f Directors meeting. Tho3y 're  not just polit­
ical considerations by a politician sitting here .  

M R .  CHAIRMAN : Shall we proceed with the questions direatly d3aling with the annual 
statement ? 

MR. SPIVAK: Well . Mr. Chairman, is the Chair man of the Manitoba De•Jelopment Cor ­
poration not going to answer that ? Are you seriously . . . 

MR. PARSONS: Well I've answered it as best I can. 
MR. SPIVAK: You're suggesting that the board , of which you were a member at the time 

that a decision had to be mad·= on this ,  harl .3. basi s,  a basis for a commercial judgment to be 

made, that the proj ect itself would ·::>e successful. 
MR. PARSONS: I believe so. We 'll look to see if there was material. I don't remember 

any political consideration being given. When S1.und er s was put up to Gimli there were certain 
social considerations at that time. That was on3 of the guidelines , one of the requisites . They 
wanted something in the base. I stated that before.  It may have bee::� better commer cially to 
have been in Winnip eg, but that was the social consideration at that point. 

MR . SPIVAK: Why would the Minister r efer to political considerations if those political 
consid·aration s weren't discussed ? 

MR . PARSONS: I don ' t  kno·.v. 
MR. SPIVAK: You dJn 't know that ? 
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MR . PARSONS: I didn't ta.�e it "political" in the same sense as you're using it. 

MR . SPIVAK: Well what interpretation would you put on "political" ? 
MR . PARSONS: Social and geographical area. 

MR. SPIVAK: The minutes, when they deal with the question of the bankruptcy and 
.liquidation , s ay,  "Discus sion then centered upon the political and •JOmmercial ramifications 
of decisions to be taken in connection with Saunders. " 

MR. PARSONS: I can ' t  answer the question any further. 

MR. SPIVAK: Well I have to say, Mr. Chairman, to the chairman, that it' s  a pretty 
unsatisfactory way of dealing with this. I appreciate the fact that the chairman is here to give 
information and there are many occasions in which some of the information may not be par­
ticularly attractive to the members of the committee. and in doing this we have a form of 
openness.  But I think at this point . . .  

MR . GREEN: Mr. Parsons did not write the minutes .  Mr. Parsons has given his im­
pres sion of the m eeting and his consider ations. He doesn 't know what the word "political" 
means to the per son who is writing it. It means something different to Mr. Spiva'<:: ; it m eans 
something different to Mr. Parsons;  it m eans something different to me. But he d•Jes not re­
call political consid erations of the natur e that Mr . Spivak has kept referring to : that is, that 

there was going to be an election. That is something that only Mr. Spivak has referred to as � 

a political consid er ation for keeping the plant open, and did so quite openly. 

MR . SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, I would suspect that if we had the other director s here 
and asked them some questions we would be able to determine that. I wonder . .  

MR . PARSONS: You referred to an election. That was a long long way off, wasn 't it ? 
MR . GREEN: That was in June of 1973.  
MR. PARSONS: Well this is 1972 we 're talking about. There was no election. 
MR . GREEN: I wonder if they too'<; into account political considerations they would ;1.ave 

d·Jne other than what they did. 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Enns , on a point of ord er. 
MR . ENNS: Well in defence of the position being put forward by Mr. Spiva1<:: right now, 

I think it should becom e something that shauld 'oe put on the record,  that what is being ex­
pr essed and will be expressed more and more often at meetings such as this , whether the 
chairmen of Crown corporations run by the MDC like it or not or whether Ministers like it or 
not, that what is being expres sed is a minority shareholder ' s  point of view. The Minister has , 
on repeated occasions,  ind:icated to us in the House that we will have ample opportur:�ity to ex­
amine persons mor e directly responsible for the expenditures of rather massive amou:1ts of 
public money, and that ' s  what ' s  taking plar:e. I kind of object to the insinuation made by the 
Minister responsible for MDC that my Leader is in any way not performing precis ely that 
responsibility in pursuing the kind of searching questions that we're not getting the answers 
to , and if we choose to d·J that and if we choose to put political overtones to it, I think we are 

only performing what any minority shareholders would dJ if they 're not s atisfied with the p er ­
forman:!e o f  the directors of the corporation that w e  have money invested in. 

MR . GR EEN :  Mr. Chairman, I fully agree with the point raised by Mr. Enns. I have 
absolutely no objection to the questions ,  and I've sat here and I 've not objected w the question s.  
But I've obj ected to the refusal to accept the chairman ' s  answer as to what his view of the 
consid erations were. That ' s  all. 

Now, he says that there are other directors and i;hey should be brought and spoken to. 
That is not my opinion. As the other dir ectors ,  Mr. Speaker , are bound by their particular 
positions ,  each !Jne may have had something different in mind. What we have indicated is 
that, prior to the guidelines being issued and a.ll through the period ·Jf the Conservative ad ­
ministr ation , the board had mu•Jh broader terms of reference than they have at present. So 
if there is a cha'1.ge . it has occurred rec ently ; it ' s  occurred in the last two years. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Spivak. 
MR . SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Coulter , who I gather is either a director of the 

MDC , or a m ember of the Board of Directors of MDC , or was - I 'm not sure whether he still 
is.  

MR . PARSONS: He is not a dir ector at the present time. 
MR. SPIVAK: But he was at one point in time. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. SPIVAK: He stated - and this is not a quote but it ' s  an article dealing with Saunders 
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(MR .  SPIVAK cont'd) . . . . . in which it ' s  indicated that he stated this - or m ade this state­

m ent - he said he blamed Saunders officials of the time for failing to proj ect realistic financial 

requirements . But he also indicated the MDC Board must share some r esponsibility . Do you 

think that ' s  a correct statement ? 
MR . PARSONS: That ' s  his . . .  

MR . SPIVAK: I ' m  sorry. Do you think that . 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Coulter ? I don ' t  believe that you can expect Mr . Parsons to answer 

what Mr. Colllter stated what his opinions wer e.  

MR . SPIVAK: Well that ' s  Mr. Coulte r ' s  opinion. I 'm asking Mr. Parsons whether he 

agrees with it or disagrees with it. 

MR . PARSONS: That ' s  Mr. Coulter ' s  . . .  It ' s  a judgmental thing. I don 't ev en kno w if 

he was quoted correctly in the paper. 

MR. SPIVA K :  But you don ' t  think that would be particularly - well. you do:1 't  want to make 

a comment on that one way or the other ? 

Mr. Parson s ,  can you tell m e  how many nativ e Manitobans are employed in . . .  

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Spivak , I believe that question, again . is  something that there is 

no requireme:1t or an expectation that p·eople are going to keep track of the racial origin of the 

people who are employed. 

MR . GR EEN : Mr. Chairman. in fairness to Mr. Spivak, -- (Interj ection) -­
MR . CHAIRMAN : Order .  Mr. Enns. 

MR . GR EEN: Mr. Chairman, in fairnes s to Mr. Spivak, the fact is that when we announced 

that the government is continuing with the program we d id indicate that it has been rJne of the 

successful areas , which we have tried many other places .  of integr ating people of nativ e descent 

in employment. that it was one of the successful areas that we had and if thgre is to be blame for 

having put that then I say that I share that blame because we did put that in o:.tr statement. You 

ask the question how m any ? I do:1 't  know whether that is answerable. 
· 

MR . SPIVAK:  Then you' re not really in a position to answer that then ? 

MR . PARSONS: Well what do you mean by "native Manitobans ?"  

MR.  SPIVAK :  Well I frankly would :1sk Mr . Green what he meant by that. 

MR. PARSONS: Right away there' s a d iffer ent interpretation . 

MR . GR EEN: We were talking in th e statement about the people of Indian and Metis descent. 

the people who are referred to often. There has been a d ifficulty in getting the correct phrase. 

They 've been referred to as Native people. original Ma'1itobans .  etc . The word used was 

"native people. " I believ e  that that was the word used . 

MR . PARSONS: I can ' t  give you the number but I ' ll - I  know that there are native people 

working ther e .  

M R .  GR EEN: Then it ' s  m y  fault. I broke the law. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Order please .  

MR . SPIVAK:  I wonde r .  Mr.  Parson s .  i f  you could ind icate at this point whether 0:1e so-

lution to the positio:� we're in would be for the sale of the company ? 

MR. PARSONS: I think there might be a pos sibility of selling it after you get certification. 

MR. SPIVAK: Are you in the process now of considering that as a possibility ? 

MR. PARSONS: Every thing is for sale if . . We 're not actively out going looking for 

it . If something came along we wo'.lld cons id er it. We have not activated it . if that was your 

question. 

MR . SPIVAK: The board takes no respo:�sibility at this time as to what limit would have 

to be placed on the co'ltinuation ::>f the proj ect. As far as I understand from what you' re saying. 

the board :tt this point is really just th·e channel through which the gov ernment funnels money, 

with the government having to m ake the deci sion as to what p<Jint no more mo:-�ey would be pro ­
ceeded with. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR . GR EEN : . . .  for Mr. Spivak ' s  benefit. We still expect the MDC to exer cise the 

supervisory administrativ e eontrol. but as to the decisio'l as to the amount of money that would 

be advanced, it is now under Part 1I - that is cor rect. 

MR . SPIVAK: That m eans that the board would not be in a positio:-� at any given time,  or 

its position would not be r ecognized as an obligation , to tell the government there should be no 

more money put into the project. 

MR. GR EEN: That is right. 



192 June 3, 1 975 

MR . SPIVAK: That doesn 't  exist. I want to then ask Mr . Parsons, r ecognizing that this 

is the way in which you operate, does the board feel comfortable in this position ? 
MR . PARSONS: Our MDC board ? 
MR . SPIVAK: Yes. 
MR. PARSONS: They no longer have any input as far as Saunders is concerned . 
MR . SPIVAK : Well but they have the supervisory r esponsibility. 
MR . PARSONS: Our staff does . 
MR . SPIVAK: Oh, but the Board itself does not . . .  
MR. PARSONS: Our staff - we report directly to the . 
MR . SPIVAK : So the Board d·Jesn't d eal with this at all . .  
MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR . SPIVAK: . . .  except for supervisory staff within MDC ? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: I see. So the Board is out of this completely. 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Mr. Axworthy. 

MR . AXWORTHY : Mr . Chairman, I just wanted to ask Mr.  Parsons some questions 
about the options available to Saunders in terms of the production of aircraft. Is the manufac ­
turing capacity of Saunders adaptable to other form s  of air components or aerospace compo­
nents ? 

are.  

MR. PARSONS: Do you m ean could we do sub-contract work for others ?  
MR. AXWORTHY : Yes .  

M R .  PARSONS: Yes w e  could. As a m atter of fact we 're doing some right now. 
MR . AXWORTHY: What kind ·Jf sub -contract work ? 
MR . PARSONS: We 're making parts. 
MR . AXWORTHY: For whom ? 
MR . PARSONS: CAE.  
MR . AXWORTHY : C A E ? 
MR. PARSONS: I knew that would surprise you. 
MR . AXWORTHY: Talk about beggaring your neighbour . 
MR . PARSONS: They have a contract and at present we can make parts for them and we 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr . Parsons,  could you tell us what the dollar volume of that . 
MR . PARSONS: It ' s  not a large contract. 
MR . AXWORTHY: What kind •Jf work is it - what exactly are you doing ? 
MR . PARSONS: We 're using our large press up there. We have a large rubber press 

and it presses o:.tt parts and we have a capability of doing that that wasn't here in Winnipeg be­
fore, so we 're doing the parts for CAE. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr . Parsons,  has there been any other kind of sub-contract work 
ever commissioned through S<�.unders ? 

MR . PARSONS: No. 
MR. AXWORTHY: That' s  the only case you have contracted ? 
MR. PARSONS : Yes. That just happened to come about. We have looked at others but 

we have never got any. We have participated i.n the long-range patrol aircraft progr am . If 
that goes ahead there may be some there.  

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr . Parsons, actually that' s  the specific question I wanted to ask. 
To what degree has the Saunders Aircraft Company, or for that matter Manitoba Development 
Corporation and its staff, explored or developed any proposals in conjunction with other air­
plane or aerospace manufacturers ,  proposals related to the new defence contracts that are 
being pres ently tendered by the Federal Government ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes ,  we have worked with Lockheed. 
MR . AXWORTHY : Could you describe what exactly the role of Saunders is in that pro-

posal ? 
MR. PARSONS: In making component parts for the aircraft. 
MR . AXWORTHY: What . . .  ? 
MR . PARSONS: You m ean what specific parts ? 
MR . AXWORTHY: Well, just what kind of arrangement has been made and . . ? 
MR. PARSONS: There 's  no contract let on that. Lockheed visited the plant to see if we 

had the capability, and asked us if we could produce some of the component parts if and when 
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(MR. PARSONS cont'd)  . . . . .  there is a contract. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr . P ar so!ls , is yo:.tr o:1ly as sadation at this point with Lockheed ? 

MR . PARSONS: No . we qu·Jted with Douglas on :me progr am . It didn 't  go ahead but we 

did - on air door s for their DC9 ' s .  

MR. AXWORTHY : Mr . P arson s .  co':ltinuing in that questio'J., has the feasibility o f  Saurt­

ders becoming a m aior s·�pplier or sub-contra::to�· o':l other air craft prod u�tio:1 lin es jn Canad a 

been looked at ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yea .  we have loo�zed at it. 

MR. AXWORTHY : Is this an area that the company actively pur sues ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR . AXWORTHY : Mr. P arson s ,  co:.tld you tell us . has there been Jn.y representation 

m ade by Saunder s or by Manitoba Developm ent Corporation to fed·3ral defence auth'Jrities or 

Supply and .Services to have them incorporate, as part of their criteria for tenderin;s. the pos ­

sibility of part of the long range patrol aircraft work being d:me in We.stern C a'lada ? 

MR. PARSONS: It is in ther e .  Pard·Jn me.  it doesn 't specify Western C anada so it must 

be d-::me in Canada. 

MR. AXWORTHY: I r ealize that, but has there been any attempt to negotiate or d tscuss 

with fed•3ral authorities that part of the criteria in these proposals that are bein;s tendered 

should include a regional d2centralization of aircraft produ:!tion ? 

MR. PARSONS: No. We have approached ·;hem and they have put in their co:J.tra-ct that 

there has to be C anadian components . Now ther e ' s  not th:tt m any aircraft plants in Canar:la.  

We were well accepted in that as a sub-contractor . 

MR . AXWORTHY: Mr. Chairman, I ' m  still not clear. When you say that you approached 

federal authorities . . . 

MR . PARSONS: They won't  put it in the contract, if Bo•2ing g ets it or if Lockheed gets 

it - and they ' r e  the two that are in there right now. They do not specify that they must use the 

Western Canadian m a.nufacturer because they d·Jn 't know whether there ' s  going to be one .  But 

what they d·J , they specify there must be so much Canadian content. That is the only thing, I 

think , the government could put in it. 

MR. AXWORTHY : Mr . Parson s ,  has ther e been any effort to -:>ffer the facilities of 

Saunder s as a sub-contractor . let ' s  s ay .  for aircraft production for Air Canad a ?  

MR . PARSONS: No. 

MR. AXWO RTHY: There hasn 't  been. For any of the other airlines ,  TransAir , any of 

the r egional airline.s ,  CP Air ? 

MR. PARSONS: No , we hav en ' t  . . .  

MR. AXWORTHY: Is there a reason why that particular avenue has not been explored ? 
Is there comm ercial rease>ns or is it just that it ' s  . .  

MR . PARSONS: Yes .  I just d :>n 't think it would be feasible. You' r e  talking about such 

a small amount. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Chairman, the r eason I 'm trying to pursue this is we're faced 

with the possibility - and I only s ay it' s a possibility - that come the end Jf this year the problem 

of certification . we all hope, will be solved . but if it isn't ,  then we ' r e  still looking at a major 

facility with a fair degree of investment by MDC and the Pro•1ineial Gove mment, a'ld I'm trying 

to determine whether there are alternative or other kinds of uses. 

MR . PARSONS: Yea there are. and we hav e  gone into this .  

MR. AXWORTHY: Coald you elaborate a little bit further on that ? 

MR. PARSONS: Well. other than we have approached people to build compo':lents . both 

Lockheed. Boeing and Dm1glas, and they have seen our facilities . there i s  a possibility of get­

ting s;�b -co':ltract work with them.  

MR . AXWORTHY : I see .  

MR. PARSONS: We do have a good machine shop and there is a possibility of  getting out­

side of the aircraft industry - a parts m anufacturing business.  

MR . AXWORTHY: Well that ' s  what I was going to ask again, Mr. Parsons.  A number 

of the aerospace industries in the United States which have fallen on d ifficult times have co':l­
verted their prod uction lines into other for m s  of . . .  I believe into urban mass transit com ­

ponents . I believe Boeing is into that kind of business now, and other types . Have those kinds 

of options been explored as a possibility for Saunder s and d id you . . .  ? 

MR. PARSONS: No , we haven 't really loo�<ed at t..1.at type. 
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MR . AXWORTHY : Well, when you mention other kind s of uses,  could you tell us what 

they might be ? 
MR . PARSONS: When I said other kinds I was referring to a sub-contract shop. It could 

be in the aircraft industry or it could be outside of the aircraft industry. 
MR. AXWORTHY: Has there been any detailed study of this ,  Mr. Parsons ? 
MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR. AXWORTHY : Nothing in detail. Is there any intention by MDC or SauJJders to look 

at those options ? 
MR . PARSONS: We're loo!<ing at them. We haven't done any d·3tailed planning or spent 

any detailed time in chasing those types of jobs d·Jwn . 
MR. AXWORTHY: Well, Mr. Chairman, again the reason I 'm asking . it would a.ppear 

that from the point of view of getting proper utility out of those facilities - and I gather that 
you have had certain numbers of lay-offs - if there wasn't some kind :>f contingencies plan 
available for securing other forms of work either in the aircraft ind c�stry or otherwise to use 
in the machine shop and assembly line areas. and you 're still a bit indefinite. I 'm just wo'lder ­

ing if you sort of have those contingency plans in black and white and available that could be 

explored if neces sary. 
MR. PARSONS: No , we haven 't  got them laid :>ut in black and white.  We have explored 

various avenues . just on a'l exploratory basis really. 

MR . AXWOR THY : I s ee.  Would there be intention to develop a more specific set of al­
ternative plans ,  say by the n ext time thi s committee m et ,  so there would be some consider ­
ation of other productions that Saunders might undertake ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes it could 1:>e.  Right now we haven't the personnel to dlvert to d::> that. 
MR . AXWORTHY: Okay. Mr. Parson s ,  there ' s  one other line of questioning. The Fir st 

Minister has said many times in the House that he feels that Federal assistance hasn
'
t been as 

generous as it m ight have been. I believe the only assistance you've r ec eived thus far is the 
purchase of the two airplanes. That ' s  correct. is that right ? 

MR. PARSONS: No, we have DREE assistance and we had some early assistance. We 
had some assistanc e through Manpower. The purchase of the two aircraft hasn't shown us any 
dollars yet. 

MR . AXWORTHY: Mr. Parson s .  what forms of assistance have you r equested that you 
have not received ? 

MR. PARSONS: Of course.  the majority portion ::>f our DREE grant is still outstanding. 
MR. AXWORTHY: But there has been an agreement that you would receive DREE as sis ­

tance. Is that right ? 
MR . PARSONS: Yes . We have received about $ 500 ,  000 out of $ 2 million. Ther e ' s  over 

a $ 2  million PAIT grant that they tell us is supposed to be approved. but we've never got a'ly 

money on that. 
MR . AXWORTHY : I gather then , Mr . Parson s .  that part of that DR E E  p l·oposal was d O) -

pend ent upon the certification. 
MR . PARSONS: Yes.  
MR. AXWORTHY: So that they are simply living up to their capital arrangements . 
MR . PARSONS: Not the original. They changed the agreement part way through. 
MR . AXWORTHY: But that ' s  not an unfair kind of condition in terms of that assistance. 

would you say ? 
MR . pARSONS: Well, it was changed after the program was under way. I don 't  know 

whether you'd call it unfair or not, but when you change the rules part way through - we didn ' t  

feel it was . . .  
MR. AXWORTHY: Mr . Parsons,  what I 'm trying to d O)termine, with som e sincerity , I 

have listened to the First Minister on many occasions now . . . 
MR . PARSONS: No we haven't  received . . .  
MR. AXWORTHY: No , let me finish. please . . . say that there has been a great reluc­

tance or unwillingness for the F ederal Government to assist in developing the aerospace ind c�s ­
try and the Saunder s complex. What I ' m  trying to determine i s ,  from what I gather you haven 't 

run into any particular major resistance or major requests that you m ade to them ; that basi ­
cally the assistance you have asked for has been forthcoming, with some conditions of course.  

I 
I 
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(MR . AXWORTHY cont d)  . . . . . Is that cor rect ? 

MR. PARSONS: Well we haven ' t  got any money . 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Green. 
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MR. GR EEN : Mr.  Chair ma'1. I believe that perhaps - if the m ember will permit me 

again - I  c an r econcile the difference s .  The Saunders Air craft Company itself has been going 

through the regular channels of DR EE and P AIT etc. I think that what the First Minister is 

referring to is  a federal presence in the aircraft ind 11stry in Manito�a of a completely different 

natur e ,  such as has been d•}ne for - and he refers to Lo�kheed and DeHav illand , with them 

taking the initiative and 'Jecoming a m ajor participant, and that has not been done through 

Sa.under s .  I think that the Premier has taken that up on several o�easions with the First (sic) 

Minister and with the Minister of Industry and Commerce in Ottawa, as well as our Minister 

of Ind.1stry. So that the channels that the honourable m ember is refer ring to are really th::>se 

that hav e  been on the political level r ather than through the company . 

MR . AXWORTHY : Mr . Chairman. I think that the question ::>f assistan:::e - and I ' m  asking 

yo•.1 not for reasons of trying to make a point. but to try and determine whether in fact there has 

been a proper support and assistance given for the existence of the aerospace program in Ma:�i ­

toba. because this has been chosen as a priority by this government to invest its money , and 

whether there has been a seeming negative reaction by fed•?ral authorities to it, and I so far 

have been unable to determine that from Mr . Parson s .  It seems that there hJ.s been .senerally 

agreements on the r equests that have been mad e .  and I gather that in most cases the Federal 

Go·1ernment does respond to an issue that ' s  taken in d:lfferent regions .  

MR. GR EEN : That ' s  right. 

MR. AXWORTHY : I loDked into the - after the Fir st Minister mad = his statement, Mr. 

Chairman - looked into reasons why assistance was given to companies in Eastern C anada and 

find again that it was based 11pon an issue that th2y took in terms of assistance and requests .  

I ' m  j ust trying to  determine what initiatives have been taken her e and to what d•?gree they have 

been responded to in r elation to this one m ajor item of r esponsibility in Saunder s .  

MR . PARSONS: Well they have responded, like our PAIT has been in there for two years 

and we still haven ' t  had any money on it at all. The Prim e Minister s aid that we would get that 

money , but that ' s a long long time ago since he said this and vve could have used it. We still 

can 't find out where it is and .  you know, when it ' s  granted stll the way up and passed . it wo·1ld 

be nice to get the money beca'.lse  we could have used :hat in the last 15 months.  Now on the 

DR EE,  as I s aid . there1 s $ 2  million approved ; we ve r eceived $ 500 .  000.  
MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Evan s .  

MR . EVANS: Mr.  Chairm an. o n  this very subject, for the Hmwurable Member from 

Fort Rouge. While the F ederal GO'! ernment has various policies such as PAIT, the Program 

for the Ad vanceme!lt of Indu:3trial Technology, and ther e ' s  DR E E  programs and so on . which 

this company could take advantage of if it fulfilled various req•.1irements - to that extent the 

F ederal Government stands  ready to help. But the fact is that the aerospace ind11stry in East­

ern C anada has received extraord inary assistance.  For example. the F ederal Go·1ernment 

purchased 30 Twin Otters thro'.l:sh the federal Department of Ind.1stry, Trade and Commerce. 

For example, the F ed eral Governm ent is  setting up a demonstration project between Ottawa 

and Montreal, I think starting at som ewher e around $ 15 million, using Twin Otter s .  And this 

is what we ' r e  talking about. these extraord:
.
_nary measures of suhstantial sums of mo'1ey that 

we have seen going to DeHavilland C anadair , and indeed to United Aircraft Company , which 

has not been forthcoming to anybody, any company.  in Western Canada. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Axworthy . 

MR. AXWORTHY : Well, Mr . Chairman, I don 't intend to turn this into a debate with 
the Minister of Ind11stry and Commer ce,  although I 'd  .:]early love to, :..:ut I would suggest that the 

reasons why , for example. the Federal Go•1ernmeY1t is suppo L·ting a STOL program between 

Ottawa and Mo:�treal is that that is an experiment in interurban. tranc;portation between two 

population center s which have a combined population of close to four million. It would seem 

to m ake some sense that they would 'Je exploring those alternatives , and I d ):J. ' t  know if there 

is  a requir ement for a STOL program between Portage la Prairie and Winnipeg as yet. I'm 

not so sure that the interchange between the two would really require that kind of inv estment, 

or any other place. I think that there are probably other circum stances that would recommend 

that, but I am trying to really d-efine exactly to what degree there might be both existing and 

other possibilities - well, let m e  r aise this ques tion with Mr . Parsons as a final one. At this 
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(MR . AXWORTHY cont'd) . . . . .  stage. when you are just coming into prod·Jction with a new 

aircraft and are attempting to find markets for this ,  is this particular plane in any way being 

m arketed through the offices of the Trade Commissioner ' s  offices in Canada ? 

MR. PARSONS: We have used them, yes. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Have you ? So again, there ' s  been no rej ection on that point, that they 

have used their good offices to . . .  

MR . PARSONS: There hasn 't been that much encouragement from them either .  

MR . AXWORTHY: Well, Mr. Parson s ,  we keep finding ourselves in kind :> f  grey zones . 

I m ean, when you say there hasn 't been much encouragement, have you asked them to m ake 

that as a m ajor promotion item in countries where you think you have a m arket ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. AXWORTHY: And it hasn t been forthcoming that they•ve do:J.e this ? 

MR. PARSONS: We haven 't seen any great results from it. I think they are now recog­

nizing there is a Saunders aircraft. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Are the results any different through the Trade Commis sioner ' s  office 

than through your other marketing agencies ? Are you selling more planes through one than 

through the other , or getting better results through one ? 

MR . PARSONS: We 're getting better results , yes . But the Trad•oJ Commissioner s now 

are looking at it. 

MR . AXWORTHY : I s ee. 

MR. PARSONS: Which they didn' t do a year ago. 

MR . AXWORTHY: Is there any other forms of support that you would think would be of 

as sistance in ma!<ing Saunders a more viable operation ? 

MR . PARSONS: Oh yes . I think they could support us a little stronger through EDC and 

these various other programs , I think if they wished to . Give u.s a little better support fina:J. ­

cially on financing. and purchasing for thes e und·erdevelop8d countries. 

MR . AXWORTHY : Okay . Thank you , Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Banm an . 

MR. BANMAN: Thank you, Mr.  Chairman . I would like to j ust add a comment  to the 

dialogue that was going on here before. I think one of the problems is if you try a:J.d ">ell some­

thing you haven't m anufactured yet and you haven 't even got certified, it makes it very very 

difficult for anybody to purchase that particular item , and I think you ' ll only realize sales po­
tential once you have something tangible to show. -- (Interj ection) -- This is not a new air ­

craft though. It ' s  a rebuilt aircraft. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Order please .  

MR . BANMAN: In the Husky Program , is that program continuing or . ? 

MR. PARSONS: No. 
MR. BANMAN: You 've s crapped that program ? 

MR. PARSONS: No , they rebuilt it as a school project . . .  training school, and ":hey 

just d id the one aircraft. 
MR . BANMAN : I notice that there was $ 4 1 1, 000, as far as Husky program costs . Is 

that air plane flying ? 

MR . PARSONS: Oh yes ,  it ' s  flying. 
MR . BANMAN : And it was j ust the one particular model ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, we built it for a specific customer . He had the engine;  we built 

all the rest of the aircraft. He had the engine, and the undercarriage were his . 

MR . BANMAN : Could you tell us what the gentleman paid you for the rebuilding of that 

aircraft ? 

MR . PARSONS: About $ 6 0, 000 , or $ '7 0 ,  0 00 . It 1 s basically the school costs that you 

are loo�dng at. It was all charged to the Husky program . 

MR. BANMAN: So that the balance - like in 1973 the Husky Program cost $ 98 , 000 and 

in 1974 it was $ 4 1 1 .  000. 

too. 

MR. PARSONS: That ' s  the cost of renting the school. 

MR. BANMAN : So that the cost to the s chool was almost half a million d:>llars.  

MR . PARSONS: Oh yes . And that ' s  after deducting off - we did get federal aid on that 

MR . BANMAN: This was the gross figure then ? 

MR . PARSONS: No , net. 
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MR. BANMAN : This is net. Are most of those proople that were in that particular 

Husky training school, are they now working in the plant ? 
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MR . PARSONS: Not the majority of th em . We had a large factor After they got 

through the school they came d)wn and were hired in Winnip,c;g. We d id .a lot of training for 

other firms here in the sheet m etal industry.  We had .1 good sch:>:>l up ther e ;  it was well r ec ­

ognized, and w e  did lose a lot o f  people back t o  other areas . 

MR . BANMAN : Is it the company ' s  intentio:-t to d·) any further training of that kind ? In 

other word 3 ,  ta'c<e another aircr aft for rebu.ild ing ? 

MR. PARSONS: No , not at this tim e. 

MR. BANMAN : This was a one shot d·3al. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes, and the only reason .  they have to build parts in the school, and 

this program , the Husky program, it was there and they had to make parts, they might as well 

m ake them on an aircr aft, put them together , and we got som ething back out of it. 

MR . BANMAN: I notice in the statement that you 've incorporated a company in Michigan 

and also a company in the United Kingd)m. Are these companies to act as your sales agents 

in those particular areas ? 

MR . PARSONS: Not necessarily. We had :o have them for purchasing.  The U . K .  com ­

pany is active in the purchasing of parts. The United States company is n::>t active at all. We 

could use the United States one maybe for a sales company . Right now it is inactive.  It s in­

corporated and sitting there. 

MR . BANMAN: And it ' s  never been used.  

MR. PARSONS: The U . K .  company is  active in obtaining component parts , active in the 

buying a'ld selling of Heron parts too. 

MR . BANMAN: So the figure that is sh::>wn here as far as the U . K .  company. advances 

to that company of $ 10 , 000  and $ 4 , 0 0 0 ,  it doesn 't  repr esent the purchas es that that company 

has d :me for you. 

MR . PARSONS: No. 

MR . BANMAN: It does the direct purchasing and . 

MR . PARSONS: And we pay the accounts. Yes . 

MR. BANMAN : And you pay the accounts directly . 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. It consists of on-e m an actually , and a small office at Heathrow. 

MR. BANMAN : I was just wondering, Mr. Chairman . when yo'.l have companies incor-

porated in  Michigan and all over the . . .  

used 

MR . PARSONS: We have to do that possibly to sell in the State3 br�t it ' s  nev er been 

MR. BANMAN : Ther e ' s  no channelling of fur1ds to any of these companies anywhere. 

MR. PARSONS: No. 

MR . BANMAN : Okay. Thank you , Mr. Chairma'l . 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. McGill. 

MR . McGILL : Mr. Chairm an, I want to go back with Mr. P arsons to May 9, 1974 , and 

re'!iew some of the exchange that oecurred there on questions about the C .  of A. program -

C ertificate of Airworthiness Flight Program s .  I said to you, Mr. Parso:-ts :  "Could you bring 

m e  up-to -date on the progress of the 27B ? I think the last time I asked this question you ex­

pected to be in the flight test stage December of 1973 and to hav e  the application for U.  S. 

C ertificate of Airworthiness well advanced by January of 1974 . Now could you tell me ·what ' s  

happening ?" And you said : "Yes. We've slipped about four o r  five months in that program . 

The flight test now - well. the plane is pr etty well completed. The flight test program starts 

in June. After that, our certification will probal:Jly take through to November or Dec ember , 

In the meantime,  of co•rrse,  we re starting production and I have a detailed schedule of what 

the certification program i s .  I ' ll try to introduce it if you like. " 

Then you went on to make some r emarks ahout this fairly complicated, long proces s :  

"Everything is dated right through , and MOT - that ' s  the Ministry o f  Transport in Ottawa ­

have agreed with our program. They d:m 't  see any problem in having it through by this fall. " 

(That was 1974 . ) 
Then I said : "You indicated that the airplane would be in the flight test stage in June. 

That' s next month. Is that firm ? "  And you said : "Yes ,  the plane is pretty well completed. " 

"How long would you estimate it will take to get a U. S. Certificate of Airworthiness 

after the airplane begins its flight testing ?" 
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(MR . McGILL cont'd) . . . . .  "Well, I said it'll be November or December when it' s  com ­
pleted. " That was your answer there. 

We went on to talk about various things and then I asked you about the flight-testing pro­
gram beginning in June and the certification for the 27B by the end :>f the year. And you said: 
"For the 27B we are looking for one a month coming off the line starting about February for 
the first six months. Then we ' ll be going to two. We 'll eventually go to three - and this is per 
month, thr ee per month. But this depends on the labour force," and so on. 

Now, Mr. Parsons, ther e ' s  a point here that comes up. I didn't know at that time that 
it was necessary to have a production line airplane in order to get the C ertificate of Airworthi­
ness.  There was no mention of an ST28 at that stage. And you didn 't tell me that there was 
anything required .Jther than the flight testing of the hand -built 27B. Now, did you :mow that 
an ST28 production line airplane was required in order to complete the C of A ? 

MR. PARSONS: I d·:m 't  know whether I did or not. I found out very shortly after that. 
It was sched·1led to come off in the fall anyway, at that particular point , the fir st 28.  

MR. McGILL: You say you don t know whether you d id or not ? 
MR . PARSONS: No I don 't know because . . .  
MR . McGILL: This is a pretty crucial bit of information, Mr . Parsons . 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . McGILL: And you think you found out shortly after May 9th ? 
MR. PARSONS: I think it was later than that. We wer e talking about the flight testing 

and so on, which was with the 005.  Now as far as the manufacture of that first plane off the 
line, at that particular point I don 't  know whether I knew or not, and I agree it ' s  a very critical 
point. Also,  at that particular point we thought the first one was going to be off in October . 

MR . McGILL: Well if you d idn 't know then, Mr. Parsons, you were sad ly misinformed 
by the people at Saund·�rs Aircraft. This is a very vital thing in the whole . . .  

MR . PARSONS: I d·Jn ' t  know whether I was misinformed or whether , really, the impor ­
tance of that wasn't stressed at that time. I wouldn't say that I was misinformed ":>eca·1se I 
don 't think this was the . . . 

MR . McGILL : Mr .  Parsons , you wrote to me in reply to my letter , and your letter is 
dated August 13th and you didn t mention anything about it at that time either , so I don't think 
you knew then. 

MR . PARSONS: Well maybe I didn't ,  I don't  know. It was in the summertime that we 
were talking about it. 

MR . McGILL : Well this is rather astonishing to me. that you would not know and n:>body 
out there at Saunders would have told you. by that time, that you had to have a production line 
airplane. And if you didn't know, then the government did 1 't know. This is just absolutely 
very hard for me to believe that this kind of thing would be going on . 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker . 

MR . MINAKER : Mr. Chairman, I am now glad we have the answer to that becau.s e I at 
that time - referring to Mr. McGill ' s questioning - was under the impression that that particu­
lar plane was going to get certification and .. as Mr. McGill has said . it' s  sort of astounding 
that this situation would occur , and I would think probably led to another 12 or 15 million dol­
lar commitment on the part of MDC in order to proceed to certification. It' s  quite astounding 
that this might occur in this fashion. Up until ,  I believe, last January when we were concerned 
about this, I d:m 't know if at that time Mr. Parsons was aware that there was another prod uc ­
tion model airplane req'.lired 'Jefore certification would be allowed at that time or not, because 
I think that was one of the points I raised in a comment, my concern that there should be a stop 
to things to find ::>ut just what was happening at that plant. 

MR . PARSONS: We knew in January. You 're talking about January of this year ? 
MR. MINAKER: Yes .  
MR . PARSONS: O h  no , because we r eported it then. 
MR . MINAKER : Mr. Chairman, on another subj ect. You indicated that MDC is no longer 

ru:1ning the company but the services are available for the company, and it more or less is 
being run under Part II of MDC at this point. 

MR. PARSONS: No , I said the MDC Board . . .  
MR. MINAKER :  Oh I 'm sorry . The MDC Board. 
MR . PARSONS: . . .  were not involved in the decision-making as far as Saunders were 

concerned, but the MDC staff still have a monitoring responsibility. 
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MR. MINAKER: Now also, Mr. Parsons. you i nd::.c a".ed that people in the U. K. subsid­
iary company are doing purchasing for you. What are the terms ·.)f the company? Is it 30 days 
net, or do they have to pay in advance? 

MR. PARSONS: That varies, but most of them we get credit . 
MR. MINAKER: Most of them are 30 days net. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. MINAKER: Now ym1 also ind ,cated earlier that where some of these outside com­
ponent parts are being manufactured, the j igs, and then also 15 sets of componellts, is that a 
firm contract that it 's non -cancellable? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. MINAKER: Then also , Mr. Chairma::�, I am led to believe that it
'
s anticipated the 

first ST23 will be off the line. wa.-; it in Septemb-er? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. MINAKER: And that you will be averaging one a month ur�til some time the early 

part of next year. and ·:hat c ertification is expected around January of this coming year or late 

- or next year - or late November-December. Is that correct? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. MINAKER: Also . you indicated that - in an answer I think to Mr . Axworthy, or I 

guess it was to Mr . Johaston - that the planes roughly are costing some;vhere in the order of 
$ 650 , 000 or $ 680, 0 0 0  each and that you anticipate ma'{ing abo'lt $ 170 , 000 per plane at 
$ 850. 0 0 0  as the selling price. Is that correct? 

MR. PARSONS: No , I did·1't say how much we were -- because I do::�'t know what the 
selling price would be at this point. 

MR. MIN AKER: It might be slightly higher. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR. MINAKER: As your costs go up. 

MR. PARSONS .. Yes. 
MR. MINAKER: Because what I was trying to visualize, then, that one would presume 

that we are committed to at least the manufacture of three planes before we know whether we've 
got c ertification. which loo�{S like somewhere around. oh. ab:mt $ 2 .  1 million. It also looks -
and I hope you'll comment and correc t me if I 'm wrong in my reasoning here - that we will have 
seven months of operation of the plant till c ertification, which o'.lr last estimate was running 
somewhere in the neighbourhood of about - at least the investment by MDC was run!'ling some­

where in the neighbourhood of $ 900.  000 per month. that we could be loo'dng at somewhere in 
the o rder of, oh. nine or ten million dDllars' commitment before we know whether we've got 
certific ation . and in addition to that. complete sets of 12 component parts - no t  complete sets 

but outsid,� parts that are being p•1rchased - and I' m wondering, is the delivery on the engines 
such that. if we ;vant to meet this sched.1le that it could well be that we have on ord-er now maybe 
30 engines. that we would be stu-::k with this if we d-ecided that we would not proceed with the 

continuous manufac tul'"ing of this air c r aft? Well I thi.nk the Minister in the House one night, it 
was the Fir st Minister. indicated the possible appro aches to the situation when ::ertificatio:-� is 
arrived at. So I ' m  leading up to that it would look like we might be committed to some;vhere 

in the order of $ 15 millio:-�. add itional $ 15 millio:-� to the $ 30 million that' s  already loaned. 
making a total of $4 5 million. 

Then my n ext question is: from past histo r y  of financing the airc rafts that we have sold, 

in order to get the house cleared -Jf those 15 air craft. we could well be loo'zing at an:>ther pos­

sible eight, nine million dollars i n  financing moneys. Is that correct? 
MR. PARSONS: . . .  to finance them all. 
MR. MINAKER: So that we could ·:>e up beyond $ 50 million -::ommitment before a decision 

is mad2 on what to do with the plant and whether or n:> t we have certification. Is that co rrect? 
MR. PARSONS: No. we' ll have certification this fall. Yo:.1 ' re going beyond that in your 

billing. though. Your invento r i es do build 11p bec aus e we're ordering 15 ships . that ' s  with each 
set of jigs. 

MR. MINAKER: And we ordered 30 aircraft engines? 
MR. PARSONS: Yes. But those I do n' t think would be a problem. That is not where you< 

problem lies. It would lie in your c ut inventor y . 
MR. MINAKER: . . .  cancellations. 
MR. PARSONS : Right. 
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MR . MINAKER :  I was going on the basis that you had indicated earlier. It was my 
understanding that it would be somewhere around the end of the year before we would know if 
we had certification, so it could be well above $ 50 million before we realized it. 

MR . PARSONS: I didn't see how you added that up. You're adding the financing on, and 
of course if you add the financing on it would be coming back in. You're adding it on twice.  

MR. MINAKER: Well, exclusive of  financing it  could be $ 4 5  million that we are com ­
mitted to at the present time in order . . . 

MR. PARSONS: Well I 'd like to check to see how you figured that out. 
MR . MINAKER : Well, on the basis of 7 months of operation to the end of the year, 

which is  . . .  
MR. PARSONS: That ' s  another six, seven million dollars . . .  

MR . MINAKER :  Six, seven million dollars. You' d  have manufactured three aircraft 
which are running about 700, 000,  if I understood you correctly. So that' s around $ 10 m illion. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, but that includes part of your labour. You see, when you're 
picking up a m illion dollars that you're putting in for a month, that ' s  for paying for engines and 
labour and everything. So that ' s  your 700,  000. 

MR . MINAKER : Yes, but, Mr. Chairman, then I can't  understand the economy. If it ' s  
costing $ 900,  0 0 0  a month for the operation o f  the plant and you say that the aircraft is  only 
costing you $ 700,  000,  then what happened to the other $ 200 ,  000 ? 

MR. PARSONS: I didn't say that. That was the figure you were using. 
MR. MINAKER : Well o'my . If we just presume, then, that the $ 900, 000 covers every­

thing, then we 're looking at $ 7  millioCI then, plus the commitment of 15 sets . So it looks like 
we -vould at least be at the $ 10 million mark or beyond. 

MR . PARSONS: Could be. 

MR . MINAKER : So that we could be already committed to $45 million before certifica­
tion is required. 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. I ' ll agree or d:<sagree. 
MR. CHAIRMAN : Are there any more questions on this aspect of Saunders Aircraft ? 

Mr. Spivak. 
MR . SPIVAK: Mr. Chairman, just m ay I make one - it's not a comment, but I want to 

put it on the record that we are very very unsatisfied with this particular matter ,  not just be­
cause of the amounts of money involved, but the basic way in which the questioCis have been 
answered. We do not think that this really deals properly with the issue of accountability that 
this committee was supposed to have undertaken. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : C an we proceed to the next one ? Sheller-Globe Manitoba Ltd. 
MR . PARSONS: Sheller-Globe is a concern that the MDC have a 10 percent involvement 

in. It was the old Flyer plant at Morris. Sheller-Globe are in manufacturing school buses. 
This is their first year of operation. They lost money the first year. As of today they are 
moving along quite a bit better, prod:.1cing buses for other areas within Manitoba. They have 
been force feeding the plant. I understand they 're producing about two buses a day right noN -
school buses. Are there any questions on Sheller-Globe ? 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Banman. 
MR . BANMAN: Thank you. I wonder if Mr. Parsons could inform us if we did get a 

statement with regard to Sheller-Globe last year. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : There were no statements last year. You have date of statements 
presented in 1974 on your sheet. Everybody received one. There was indic atio-:1 that there 
-vas no statement for 1974 . Date of statement presented March 27th was 1975. 

MR . BANMAN : The amount of investment that the province has right now, as far as 
Sheller-Globe is concerned, is it just in the buildings or have they advanced some other 
moneys ? 

MR . PARSONS: There was 10 percent of the $ 500 , 000 ,  which is $ 50 ,  000. 

MR . BANMAN : The $ 500,  000 - that was the sale of ihe buildings. 
MR . PARSONS: No , that was the shareholders '  equity. 
MR . BANMAN : That was shareholders '  equity. 
MR. PARSONS: Then we sold them the building and we are holding the mortgage on it. 
MR . BANMAN: What was the sale of that building ? 

MR . PARSONS: It was around $450 ,  000. 
MR. BANMAN : So you hold a mortgage now for the . 
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MR . PARSONS: We hold the mortgage as shown on the balance sheet under long-term 

debt. It' s a 10 percent mortgage payable in monthly installments. That is money owing to the 

MDC. 

MR. BANMAN: Is the company up-to-date on their mortgage payments ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Any other questions ? Proceed to the next one. Tantalum Mining 

Corporation of Canada Limited. 

MR. PARSONS: You have a 31st of December, 1974 , statement a:-td ;here is a sheet 

that we have passed out with it showing the do3tails of the MDC equity. I think the stateme:-tt 

is well detailed. Are there any q·�estions on the operatio:-t ? 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker. 

MR. MINAKER: For information, Mr. Chairman, I wond,�r if Mr. Parsons co"J.ld com ­

m ent o n  the present status of this company with regard to receivership. I think there was a 

misunderstanding at one time that thi,s company might be involved in a receivership or its 
parent company. 

MR . PARSONS: The parent company is in the hands of a receiver at the present time. 

It d•Jes not affect the operatio:-t of . . . We have protected the operation of the Tantalum 

Mining Company . 

MR . MINAKER : That the receivership cann:Jt touch the operation :Jr mal(e any claim on 
it. 

MR . PARS•JNS: No. 

MR. MINAKER: Is there any anticipation, Mr. Chairman, of a possible sale of this 
company ? 

MR. PARSONS:  No. Pardon me.  Whe:1 I say no - yo".l m ean of our 25 perce:1t ? 

MR. MINAKER : Yes. 

MR. PARSONS: No, we haven't  bee:1 looldng to s ell it. The receiver,  of course, has a 

50 percent holding from Chemalloy .  H e  must get our permission before he c a'l sell it. We 

have first refusal. 

MR. MINAKER: Is there any consideration being given at this time for MDC to buy the 

company and own it 100 percent ? 

MR . PARSONS: There ' s  25 percent owned by Kawecki Berylco of New York, so we 

would :wt take that but we would ·�ertainly look at the other 50 percent to ).�eep the company 

going. We are watching it very closely, monitoring it. 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Any other questions on Tantalum Mining Corporation ?  Mr. Spivak. 

MR . SPIVAK: The receiver ofChem alloy is attempting to now negotiate a sale of the 

sb.ares ? 

MR . PARSONS: No , not to my knowledge. 

MR. SPIVAK: The . . .  receiver, and :he other 25 percent interest. The other 25 
percent interest cam e about as a result of the sale by Chemalloy of the 25 percent interest? 

MR. PARSONS: That' s correct. 

MR. SPIVAK :  C an I ask, do you know the principals with whom the 25 percent - you 

m entioned the compa.'ly name but d·J you :ma N the principals ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes, I know them. 

MR . SPIVAK: Are they involved in resource industries only ? 

MR . PARSONS: No, they 're involved in some manufacturing. 

MR. SPIVAK: You d:n ' t  know what type of m anufacturing. 

MR. PARSONS: No I don't. I hav e  their statement but really I can ' t - it ' s  all basically 

in the chemical and resource type of manufacturing. 

The next company is Venture Manitoba Tours Ltd. This is the company that operates 

the M. S. Lord S·�lkirk. They had a r elatively succes sful seaso:J. last year. The company 

showed a v ery small profit. The ship operated to almost c ap:-tcity. I don't think this company 

is ever going to make a v ery large amount of money ; that ' s  about as good a year as it's going 

to have. It' s  a very m arginal operation. It' s  being well operated md Manitoba is getting a 

lot of good publicity from the ship. 

MR . CHAIRMAN: Mr. B anman. 

MR. BANMAN : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. About a year ago there was some mention 

that the Venture Tours had undertaken a study to check into the feasibility of possibly stretch­

ing the boat. Is there anything on the drawing boards right now with regard to that ? 
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MR . PARSONS: No. It was considered and it is feasible. Und er today ' s  costs we are 
probably looking at $ 2  million. 

MR . BANMAN : About a month ago in the House I asked a question whether a boat that 
was shipped in from Ontario, which was supposed to be used for taking up passengers into the 
B erens River area - that was bought by the Manitoba Development Corporation, right ? 

MR. PARSONS: It was bought by Venture Tours. 
MR. BANMAN : Bought by Venture Tours .  Are there any other areas on the lake that 

would recr.1ire that type of facility ? 
MR . PARSONS: Basically not. We had a boat in there before and this was the replace­

ment for it. We have another boat over at Gull Harbor because there is the odd time you can ' t  
dock there. i f  it ' s  very high, and w e  have a shuttle boat there to take the passengers. It' s a 
little dangerous for him to get into the docks there if the water i s  very high. 

MR. BANMAN: The usage of the boat. Does the Department of Education, on the educa­
tional trips that some of the students are going on, I wonder - you wouldn' t  have a breakd:>wn 
as to what percent of the operating or the revenue is derived from that agency of government. 

MR . PARSONS: We don't get anything from the Department of Ed.wation for that. We 

charge the students . It' s  a school program but they pay for it. We run it pretty close to cost. 
MR. BANMAN: So that the Department of Education . . .  
MR . PARSONS: The Department of Education aren't involved in it at all. Venture 

Manitoba started the program. Now, the Department of Ed'lcation are certainly not involved 
at all. Our crew, I think, have probably got some assistance from them in the educational 
end of it because we run educational in conjunction with the teachers on the history of La.ke 
Winnipeg and various other subjects like that. Now they may be getting help from the 

Department of Education for that but they don ' t  financially participate. 
MR . BANMAN: So I understand that the boat fare is paid ':Jy the individ.1als,  then, taking 

the trip. They aren 't subsidized to a certain extent by the Department of Education. 
MR . PARSONS: No , not that I know of. They may be subsid::.zed by their own schools.  

We d·)n ' t  know that. 
MR . BANMAN: Through the local school boards then. You would not have anything to 

do with that. 
MR . PARSONS: No. We charge so much a student and some of the teachers are given 

free passage to some extent. 
MR. BANMAN : Fine. Thank you, 
MR . CHAIRMAN : Are there any other questions ?  Mr. Spivak. 
MR. SPIVAK: Well I wonder, Mr. Parsons, can you tell me - there are government 

agencies who rent the boat for a period of time for whatever purposes they want. Is that 
correct ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 
MR. SPIVAK: Do you have a breakdown in terms of the revenue received, what percent­

age of revenue comes from government sources or from hospitality that is offered by the 
province , which is in turn acknowledged or paid by the use of this facility ? 

MR. PARSONS:  It would be very small, probably . . .  One y ear we had a one-weekend 
cruise for the Hydro. They paid the full fare, but it would amount to about $ 78 ,  000. Is it 

$ 9, 600 ? Is that right ? Good. We got $ 9 , 600. But it ' s  a very small percentage. I thin.k it ' s  

only twice that that ' s  happened. 
MR . SPIVAK: You have an office now in the Convention Centre ? 
MR . PARSONS: Yes. 
MR . SPIVAK: Do you mind telling m e  the square footage cost on that office, the rental 

on that office. 
MR . PARSONS: It' s  seven fifty. 
MR. SPIVAK:  How many square feet do you have ? 
MR . PARSONS: 2, 000. 
MR. SPIVAK: 2, 000 square feet, seven fifty. 
MR. PARSONS: Over and above that, we have to pay for our own leasehold improve­

m ents. 
MR. SPIVAK: What were your leasehold improvements ? 
MR . PARSONS: $ 20,  000-$ 25 ,  000. In total the whole thing is $ 30 ,  000;  we' re financing 

it over a five-year period. 
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MR . SPIVAK: Well in terms of tha - is  that a particularly good location as far as this 

company is concerned ? 

MR. PARSONS: That ' s  very debatable. We d:m't know. It 's a goo d location because 

we've always got a lot of walk-in �usiness. We had our office in the Somerset Building before. 

We should get more in the Conv ention Centre. We hope it will be a plus because we' re paying 

about $ 5 , 0 0 0  or $ 6 ,  0 0 0  more over there than .;ve were p:lying in oue other area. 

MR . SPIVAK: Has there been any consideration given to the expansion of this comp:1ny 
into other ventures ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes. 

MR . SPIVAK :  Would you mind telling me what type o1' ventures they are ? 

MR. PARSONS: Yes,  we have looked 'nto the resort ind �stry. The Gull Harbor pl'oject 

we worked with the Federal Government on, is d·)ne through Venture Mar1 itoba To�rs. 

MR. SPIVAK: When you' re telling it as a resort industry, are you telling it specifically 

in terms of resort ind"�stry sort of complementary to the use o f  the boat, or are you talking 

about other d-8velopments ? 

MR. PARSONS: No , it ' s  other d1evelopments. 

MR . SPIVAK: Other d 8velopments. When they have been consid8red. has there been 

planning undertaken , or has there been research u:1dertake::1 ? Have consultants been hired ? 

MR . PARSONS: Yes.  On Gull Harbor ,  yes. 

MR . SPIVAK: In other areas as well ? 

MR . PARSONS: We.3t Hawk Lake. We d id a very p::eliminary loo'< at that, yes. 

MR . SPIVAK: Now that ' s  not through MDC. We' re talking about . . .  

MR. PARSONS: I 'm talking about Venture Tours. 

MR. SPIVAK: Venture Tours. And that ' s  not MDC itself; it ' s  Venture Tours. 

MR. PARSONS: Yes. 

MR . SPIVAK: Has the board of MDC encouraged Venture Tours to examine these, O L" 

has Venture Tours examined these within their own . . .  ? 

MR . PARSONS: Venture Tours examine them with their own, and ·chen it would come 

back - if there was going to be financing and so on, it would have to come back thro:.tgh the 

MDC . 

MR . SPIVAK: But for a proj ect. But in terms of the initial cost of evaluation of pro ­

j ects or of research in it, etc. that' s  their own undertaking ? 

MR. PARSONS: No. They came back with the idea for the proj ect; MDC picked up half 

of the tab and Industry and Commerce - pardon me. Tourism , I think, picked up half of the 

project analysis for the consultants. 

MR. SPIVAK: S0 that, in effect, Venture Tours really is not necessarily the o riginator 

of this. Venture Tours is the vehicle for which . . .  

MR. PARSONS: That ' s  correct. 

MR . SPIVAK :  . . .  the consideration of - a variety of d ifferent projects are being con­
sidered. 

MR . PARSONS: Yea. 
MR . SPIVAK:  Now ccmsid·�ration of these projects, the origination of these proj ects , 

the development, is this coming from the MDC board ·)r is this coming from the government 

through the MDC board ? 

MR. PARSONS: The Gull Harbor project, I worked with the Department of Tourism on 

it. They had a project up there and they asked us if we would look at it, both with the idea of 

getting outside people. We tried ·.:o get an outside builder to go up there and put a resort in. 

When that d1d:1't work, then we went to work with the Federal Go·.rernment to see if we could 

get support from thecn for a resort in that area, and �hat evolved. 

MR . SPIVAK: Has MDC or Ve::1ture Tours purchased any land from the la:1d ')anking 

for resort d·welopment ? 

MR. PARSONS: No . 
MR. SPIVAK :  Are there any maior projects now being reaearch·8d at the present time ? 

I know that you have indicated Gull Harbor, but other than that. 

MR. PARSONS: Other than Gull Harbor ? No. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker. 

MR. MINAKER: West Hawk Lake, Mr. Chairman, it was indicated there was some 

interest. Was this in particular at a spot called Lakeside Cabins ? 
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MR . PARSONS: Lakeside Cabins ? The spot we were looking - Lakeside Cabins are 
right along the highway, aren't they ? 

MR. MINAKER:  No, they 're shore line. It' s presently a motel or cabins. 

MR . PARSONS: The spot that we were looking at is in-between West Hawk Lake and 
Lyons,  is it Lyons or Hunt ? Anyway , the area - and it ' s  owned by the province now - that land 
stretch in there. They were looking for resort development in there. 

MR. MINAKER: I see. Okay. 

MR . PARSONS: Nothing came of it. We dld a preliminary study and 'tt was shelved for 
the time being. 

MR . MINAKER :  Mr. Chairman, I have another question that doesn 't relate to Venture 
Tollrs so I'll wait until this Sllbject is over. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Adam, you have a question ? 

MR. ADAM : Just one question, Mr. Chairman. I was wondering, is there docking 
facilities at Hecla Island at all ? 

MR. PARSONS: At Hecla ? 
MR. ADAM : Yes. 

MR . PARSONS: That ' s  where Gull Harbor is. 
MR. ADAM : That 's  where it is. 
MR. PARSONS: That ' s  Gull Harbor, yes. 
MR. ADAM : I see. That ' s  what I wanted to know. 
MR. PARSONS: Yes, the boat docks there regularly. 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Well that finishes Venture Tours Ltd. We have to hear from the 

Chairman of Leaf R apid.3 Development Corporation, also Misawa Homes of Canada Ltd. , and 
we have not finished Flyer Indllstries Ltd. I understand that there was supposed ·eo be some . 

MR . PARSONS: There ' s  a couple of questions that I . . .  
MR . CHAIRMAN: Mr. Spivak. 
MR. SPIVAK: Just on the Flyer part. I think that Mr. Parsons has indicated that if 

the financial position was available, and he thought it would be available before the end :>f the 
session, he would produce it for us and we would then be able to conclude it. 

MR . GR EEN : Mr. Chairman, I have explained on several occasions that, with regard to 
Misawa, the Japanese are operating that company. They have infused new money into it. I 
have indicated that I am not able to discuss the operation until that is concluded. I do tell you 
that these people are operating the company ; they are aggressively trying to make a go of it; 
they have put more money into it and they are continuing. I have also indicated that our posi­
tion will be stated as soon as the transaction is completed, and I have indicated that there will 
be a substantial los s  on last year ' s  operation. But in fairness to the company that wishes to 
proceed and operate, they d·J not wish it to be dealt with until the m atter is finally concluded. 
Our own position will be - really, I can ' t  say much more about it except we will be a creditor 
of the company. They are presently in operation and wish to continue in operation and they 
don't wish to be hampered by discussion of the matter other than after the deal is concluded. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : Mr. Minaker, you had some other questions you wanted to ask ? 
MR. MINAKER : Yes, if I might, if you'll permit. It was just a question and it won't 

take very long, seeing Mr. Parsons is here. Could he advise if MDC has m ade a loan to 
Com ely Comic s ? � 

MR. PARSONS: No we haven 1t. I 
MR . MINAKER: And have you considered a loan request by Comely Comics ? 
MR . PARSONS: I don't think it ' s  ever been considered. There was some talk about 

MDC and I don 't know how they got involved in that. To my knowledge there was never - (was 
there ever a formal application ?) I think one of our loan officers was asked to look at it, but 
there ' s  been nothing - and that' s  quite some time ago. 

MR. MINAKER : Thank you. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Committee rise. 




